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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

...(gavel)... Aloha and

13

good -- good afternoon, everyone. Welcome to our

14

Planning Committee meeting. My name is Sol

15

Kaho'ohalahala. I'm the Chair of the Planning

16

Committee. We do have a quorum present to begin our

17

meeting today.

18

I would like to request that everyone in the

19

Chambers, if you have any cell phones or noise-making

20

devices, if you would put them on the -- the silent

21

mode, that would be appreciated.

22

I would like to begin by introducing the --

23

the Committee Members that are present for our meeting.

24

Beginning with Vice-Chair, Member Jo Anne Johnson.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. And to my far

left, Committee Members, Member Mike Molina.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good afternoon, Chair.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. Next,

5

Member Gladys Balsa.

6

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. Member

8

Bill Medeiros.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha. Good
afternoon, Chair.

11
12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And, also, Member Wayne
Nishiki.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good afternoon.

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And Member Michael

15

Victorino.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon,
Chair.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. I'd

19

like to also thank the -- acknowledge the presence of

20

our Chair, Council Chair, Member Danny Mateo.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good afternoon.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. And, also, the

23

Budget and Finance Chair, Member Joseph Pontanilla.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you for being in
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5

our meeting today.
Also here, in the -- in our presence, from the

3

Department of Corporation Counsel, Mr. Michael Hopper,

4

who's the Deputy Corporation Counsel. Aloha, Michael.

5

And from the Planning Department, today we have Director

6

-- Planning Director Kathleen Aoki. Aloha, Director.

7

Seated next to her is Senior Planner, Simone Bosco.

8

Aloha. And Chair would like to also acknowledge

9

presence of Deidre Tegarden from Economic Development,

10

Coordinator, and, also, Director Lori Tsuhako from Human

11

Concerns, who's also present in the audience.

12

And then I'd like to acknowledge our Staff

13

from the Planning Committee. So to my left is David

14

Raatz, who's our Legislative Attorney. And to my far

15

left is Clarita Balala, our Committee Secretary. Okay.

16

We will begin with public testimony in a few

17

moments. If you are wishing to testify, and you haven't

18

done so, please sign up with the -- the person that's

19

out there in the lobby. Testimony will be limited to

20

three minutes. Testifiers are requested that, when you

21

come to the podium, if you would state your name for the

22

record and to indicate who you're representing.

23

So it's been a while since our Planning

24

Committee has been convened. And so at this time, I

25

would like to begin by just giving a little bit of a -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376
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1

a background of where we are currently in the Planning

2

Committee process for the Maui Island Plan.

3

Today's special meeting of the Planning

4

Committee, I wanna thank all of the -- the Members for

5

being present today, as -- as well as Non-Voting

6

Members, and the Administrative Staff, for taking the

7

time to be here as well. Our regular meeting slot was

8

unavailable last week because of the Memorial Day

9

holiday, so that's why we're here on a -- on an off

10

week. So we have the one item on our Committee, and

11

that's PC-2, which is the General Plan update.

12

We will be looking at the Maui Island Plan in

13

our deliberations today. Our meeting today gives us

14

another opportunity to consider the 342-page draft of

15

the Maui Island Plan.

16

Before the Council's Committee went on hiatus

17

for Budget Session, the Planning Committee conducted a

18

dozen meetings on the Maui Island Plan. As the Members

19

will recall, much of this meeting time was devoted to

20

district meetings throughout the Island of Maui. And we

21

are all cognizant of the importance of this Plan and

22

will have in -- that -- and -- and what will it mean for

23

all of our communities here in Maui. When we -- we then

24

returned to meetings here in the Chamber and we were

25

able to complete our initial review of Chapters 1, 2 and
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3, and much of Chapter 4.
So today, the Chair would like to begin with

3

public testimony. And, again, just as a reminder, each

4

of you will have three minutes of time. And then if you

5

would state your name again at the podium, for the

6

record, and who you represent. So with that, then, the

7

Chair would like to begin with the public testimony.

8

The first person signed up to testify is Mr. Paul Laub.

9

...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

10

MR. LAUB: Good afternoon. I am Paul Laub.

11

And since it's been since January, I'm not sure about

12

exactly where we are. Are we gonna be given three

13

minutes for each topic over this Maui Island Plan?

14
15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. You'll be given
three minutes of time.

16

MR. LAUB: For --

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then I'll allow you

18

to complete with an additional minute, yeah.

19

MR. LAUB: Okay.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

21

MR. LAUB: In the Economic Development, number

22

one, "The economy to be driven by innovation and

23

creative capacity." It's a quote. Policy 4.1.3.d, "To

24

encourage, nurture and reward entrepreneurship and

25

innovation." Freeing of legislative restrictions should
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be accomplished.

2

Tourism, Page 4 through 9, errors include:

3

A, loss of community to the transient nature

4

of neighborhoods. There is no known loss of -- of this

5

nature to the neighborhoods.

6

B, disruptions such as overflow parking or

7

partying by visitors. Who do the visitors know here

8

that could cause a parking jam? Logically, any large

9

parties are going to be local population generated.

10

C, purported avoidance of tax payments by some

11

operators. I suggest that all industries have tax

12

cheats, but it's interesting that this is the only group

13

to be singled out in the entire Maui Island Plan as

14

being "purported" cheaters.

15

D, loss of residential housing stock. Most of

16

the TVR homes are not considered in the moderate

17

category and do not take away housing stock.

18

And, E, high residential property taxes run

19

with the individual properties, such as improved

20

residential versus homeowner.

21

But on Page 4-10, through 10, the Plan points

22

out that these accommodations generate more economic

23

activity per dollar spent, provide opportunities for

24

small businesses, creation, and entrepreneurship and

25

provide accommodation opportunities for Maui residents
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and visiting family members. Accordingly, these

2

accommodations should be greatly encouraged as they are

3

extremely helpful to our local needs.

4

Three: The County needs to step into

5

assisting in the education of our students as the State

6

is clearly failing to do the job adequately.

7

Four: Page 4 through 29, Hawaii has

8

consistently received poor ratings as a place to do

9

business.

Page 4-27, Policies, Items 4.5.1.a and

10

4.5.1.c outlines prohibitive costs and recommends the

11

policies of providing incentives and support for small

12

businesses and entrepreneurships and to reduce barriers

13

to small business development. We desperately need this

14

implemented as soon as possible.

15

And I thank you.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

17

MR. LAUB: These are copies.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members,

19

any questions for the testifier?

20

MR. LAUB: Thank you.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Seeing none,

22

thank you. The next testifier is Kallie Keith-Agaran,

23

to be followed by Terri Erwin.

24
25

MS. KEITH-AGARAN: Thank you very much. My
name is Kallie Keith-Agaran. I'm here representing two
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groups. One is my church, Good Shepherd Episcopal

2

Church, right here in Wailuku, about 1,000 members, not

3

all attending because they're mostly working on Sundays,

4

but -- and, also, FACE Maui, Faith Action for Community

5

Equity. It's a community organizing group I helped

6

found and have been working with.

7

My personal -- and I'm speaking as a lay

8

person in terms of my perception of this process because

9

I've not been a part of the process. But my perception

10

is that the writing of the -- the GPAC process, the

11

evaluation of these plans, of all of these meetings that

12

have gone on, has been extensive, thorough. It has been

13

inclusive. It has been very, very broad. And it has

14

taken a lot of time and public money, public resources

15

to do this. And it seems to me that although it may not

16

be the most popular thing to do, to -- to include these

17

Urban Growth Boundaries and some of the issues that will

18

be addressed now in this, that, because of the

19

investment in time and the public's trust, it is

20

incumbent upon our legislators here in this County to

21

take this up and to pursue it, wherever it goes, for the

22

interest of the County, because it's part of the

23

process. It's my view that this is what legislators are

24

paid to do.

25

And that's really all I have to say.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Mahalo. Thank
you.

3

MS. KEITH-AGARAN: Thank you.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any questions?

5

Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Terri Erwin, to be

6

followed by Pam English.

7

MS. ERWIN: Good afternoon. Good afternoon.

8

My name is Terri Erwin. I'm the lead organizer with

9

FACE Maui. And I am present on behalf of the

10

organization. Stan Franco, the President, would have

11

been here. He is off island with family. Thelma

12

Akita-Kealoha, who is the Chair of the Housing and Land

13

Use Task Force, would have been here, but she's also got

14

family obligations. So you've got me today. So thank

15

you for the opportunity to bring our perspective to your

16

process.

17

I'd like to echo a bit of what Kallie said in

18

terms of our appreciation for the time and the energy --

19

energy and the very responsible effort that went into

20

the development of the Plan on behalf of all of the

21

people of the County, the members of GPAC. And all of

22

you have been a part of that.

23

Any plan that is undertaken with so much input

24

and with the participation of so many stakeholders is

25

not gonna be a perfect plan. It's not gonna have the
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200 percent endorsement of -- of every stakeholder

2

because every stakeholder has given a little, taken a

3

little, but it does represent the best of what has been

4

possible to achieve over the last three years on behalf

5

of the people of Maui with what we believe is a fair

6

representation of stakeholders, from development to

7

community members to environmentalists to, really,

8

across the board. So we -- we understand that there may

9

be some specifics that different groups may have issues

10

with. And if that's the case, that some are not in full

11

support of this, that those specifics would be brought

12

forward and identified and resolved. However, if

13

there's no specific complaints, that, in general, the

14

Plan is important, it's timely, and we ask that it be

15

moved forward and -- and voted upon by October.

16

Thank you for your attention

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you,

18

Terri. Members, questions for the testifier? Okay.

19

Member Johnson?

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Terri. Just -- just

21

so I'm clear in my mind, because I -- I think I

22

understand what you're saying. But when we've been

23

reviewing and going through this, what we're seeing is

24

the recommendations made by the larger group, which is

25

what you're speaking about, you -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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MS. ERWIN: Yes, ma'am.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- know, the majority of

3

the individuals. Then, in some instances, what has been

4

agreed upon from the larger group has then been further

5

maybe segmented or altered by the Planning Department.

6

It might not be what was coming from the overall

7

majority in the GPAC group. So are you saying to us

8

that we should look really hard at the General Plan

9

Advisory Committee recommendations as opposed to

10

anything that might be altered that would cause us to

11

perhaps, you know, make a different decision? Is -- is

12

that what you're essentially saying?

13

MS. ERWIN: Thank you for asking for the

14

clarification. I think I was saying something a -- a

15

little -- little bit more -- more broad and not

16

specifically what you just -- what you referred to.

17

Thank you for clarifying that.

18

What I was referring to, really, was that

19

there are a variety of interests in the community.

20

There's developers, there's environmentalists, there's a

21

number of different people who have different interests,

22

given their role in the community, all valid interests,

23

represented in the development of the Plan. And it's

24

been likewise continued on through a process where other

25

people have had input as well.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

2

MS. ERWIN: That's part of a fair and natural

3

community process. It's acceptable to address those

4

specific things. What's not acceptable is to stall the

5

entire Plan and to take the entire process and delay it

6

or derail it so that the community ultimately doesn't

7

get any plan.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

9

MS. ERWIN: We have a plan on the table.

10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I understand what you're

11

saying. So that, you know, the discussions have been, I

12

guess, going on for a long period of time, and,

13

therefore, it's incumbent upon us to handle this

14

expeditiously and not delay it, because delaying it may

15

cause some of these goals and objectives, over time, to

16

be lost. Is -- am I correct?

17

MS. ERWIN: We may lose the entire Plan.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

19

MS. ERWIN: That's our concern. And --

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: All right.

21

MS. ERWIN: -- the entire process would be

22

derailed and that would not be acceptable --

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

24

MS. ERWIN: -- for us.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
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really appreciate your clarification.

2

MS. ERWIN: Thank you.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions,

4

Members? Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Pam English,

5

followed by Carol Reimann.

6

MS. ENGLISH: Aloha, Chair and Members of the

7

Planning Committee. My name is Pam English with Maui

8

Land and Pineapple Company. And welcome back after the

9

break for Budget. And thanks for the continued

10

opportunity to give testimony on the Maui Island Plan.

11

As in all of our previous testimony, we're here to help

12

review the documents and offer background and

13

suggestions on how to improve the Plan as the process

14

continues.

15

We thought this hearing would be a good chance

16

to take a step back and look at the overall process that

17

the Plan has been through and where we're going from

18

here as the ramifications of this complex document will

19

be far-reaching for our island. We believe we should

20

take the time to create a realistic, useful document

21

that will stand the test of time and not become

22

burdensome tc administer.

23

With the addition of Urban Growth Boundaries,

24

contemplated in a manner never before tried, we don't

25

have a model community to compare and learn what the
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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pitfalls might be. The growth boundaries are proposed

2

with both geographic as well as density controls; using

3

contemporary principles of planning such as new

4

urbanism, but in an island setting.

5

Caution should be taken to make sure we don't

6

harm the open market economy and create unintended

7

consequences. Growth means schools, new diversified

8

industries and homes for all economic classes.

9

This is our chance to do it right for Maui.

10

Let's take our time, understand the legal and social

11

ramifications of the document.

12

Has Legal cross-referenced the document with

13

other existing codes? Has Planning prepared a mock

14

project to see how the submittal and review process will

15

work? Has each department prepared for the new

16

processing procedures that this document will require?

17

Will the ramifications of the document become too

18

complex to equitably and effectively administer? Take

19

some time, review the document, understand both the

20

ramifications in -- in future growth, or lack thereof,

21

as well as budget and efficiency matters.

22

We'll be here to offer detailed testimony and

23

suggestions cn a chapter by chapter level as the

24

hearings get started and hope to help you create a

25

useful, well-prepared document. And thanks again for
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the opportunity to testify.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

3

Members, questions of the testifier? Yeah. Pam, I

4

would just like to ask you, only 'cause you make note of

5

this, you're talking about legal and social

6

ramifications as -- as perhaps consequences of us moving

7

forward, then?

8
9
10

MS. ENGLISH: As consequences of not taking
the time to clearly and legally vet the document before
adoption.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Yeah. Can you

12

explain, then, what you mean by taking the time to vet

13

the document, then?

14

MS. ENGLISH: Well, what I -- what I meant

15

was, has the -- your legal staff taken the time to

16

compare what we're proposing to adopt with current

17

regulations and ordinances and make sure we don't have

18

conflicts that potentially -- one instance might be to

19

bind us down with conflicting specifics.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then just --

21

just a comment on your unintended consequences. Do you

22

see unintended consequences at this juncture?

23

MS. ENGLISH: At this juncture, I wanted to

24

speak just on an overall basis and make sure that as we

25

continue to speak over the next several months that -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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that we keep in mind any unintended consequences.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I wanna be

3

clear, because if you know -- know of some, then this

4

would be your time to note them.

5

MS. ENGLISH: I absolutely will on a chapter

6

by chapter level. And I wasn't sure if you would --

7

gonna be starting right up again on Chapter 4 or -- so

8

we held our -- our comments on that. And I believe

9

you've already got my testimony on Chapter 4.

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Great.

11

MS. ENGLISH: Thank you.

12

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other

13

questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

14

MS. ENGLISH: Thank you.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Carol Reimann, followed

16
17

by Mark Sheehan.
MS. REIMANN: Welcome back. My name is Carol

18

Reimann, and I represent the Maui Hotel and Lodging

19

Association.

20

The Island Plan was drafted at a time when the

21

visitor industry was at its peak. High occupancies and

22

high visitor spending was prevalent. Our impressive

23

visitor statistics resulted in profits, substantial

24

business, and high employment for other sectors of

25

Maui's economy. Though we respect and appreciate the
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1

effort it took to create this document, conditions have

2

drastically changed. And now we find ourselves with the

3

proposed plan that neither recognizes nor addresses the

4

current needs of Maui's struggling economic engine.

5

Additionally, since the visitor industry did

6

not have representation, nor much input, during the GPAC

7

process, we find numerous instances in sections of the

8

Plan where we have comments and concerns, and we would

9

like to have a voice.

10

Our concerns include the chapters on

11

Population, Economic Development, Housing,

12

Infrastructure, Public Facilities, and Land Use. Each

13

of these monumental topics in their own right has huge

14

impacts to Maui County. To tackle all of them within

15

the short period of time that you have been allocated is

16

quite ambitious. GPAC took nearly three years to

17

complete the Draft Island Plan. We encourage you to

18

take your time, carefully consider every aspect and

19

possible consequences of this plan. It is a plan that

20

will impact our lives, our businesses and our community

21

for the next 20 years.

22

We would also like to encourage you to extend

23

your deadline, if necessary, so that the resulting

24

document addresses the current needs of Maui's

25

struggling and changing economy.
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As I've testified before, media reports about

2

improved visitor statistics are promising, but these

3

statistics can also be misleading. Recent occupancy

4

improvements are only being achieved through deep

5

discounting.

6

Also in the news, several Maui properties are

7

in default. And all properties are well below their

8

financial goals. For those that are not yet in default,

9

the majority of them are still not profitable.

10

Maui's economic engine, the visitor industry,

11

continues to struggle to attract travelers in a highly

12

competitive global marketplace. And our recovery will

13

be very gradual and prolonged. We should all have a

14

shared interest in protecting and promoting Maui's

15

tourism industry, which so many residents rely upon to

16

survive.

17

We respectfully request that you incorporate

18

language in this Plan that encourages the recovery of

19

tourism and supports a healthy and vibrant visitor

20

industry. The industry represents nearly 40 percent of

21

all jobs and contributes approximately 40 percent of all

22

real property tax collections on Maui.

23

Once again, we are here to offer our services

24

to you as you review the Draft Island Plan. Please know

25

that we are available to answer any questions in regard
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1

to the visitor industry during your review period.

2

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today.

3
4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, questions? Member Baisa, go ahead.

5

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair.

6

And thank you, Ms. Reimann. We've completed our first

7

review, first pass of the Population Section, Chapter 1.

8

MS. REIMANN: Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you have concerns

10

about that? Do you feel that there still needs to be

11

further refinement?

12

MS. REIMANN: Yes, we do. And we actually

13

have some comments to that, and we will be addressing

14

them during your review of the second pass that you

15

take.

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And does that also apply
to the rest of the chapters we've completed?
MS. REIMANN: Correct. And we also have

19

comments to the Economic Development Section, on

20

Tourism. We have comments to each that we would like to

21

see incorporated, if possible.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And is most of your

23

concern based on the fact, as you said, that our economy

24

has changed from when we began to today?

25
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1

we're in a totally different world today than where we

2

were at then. We need a document to support our

3

industry so that we can recover and so, you know, we

4

have jobs on our island.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very

5
6

much.

7
8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other
questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

9

MS. REIMANN: Thank you.

10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mark Sheehan, followed
by Dick Mayer.

12

MR. SHEEHAN: Good afternoon, Chairman,

13

Council Members. My name is Mark Sheehan. I'm here

14

from Haiku. And I'm here as an observer of the planning

15

process around the Maui Island Plan, which has very much

16

impressed me, not only for all the work that went on

17

from all the community groups over the years, but the

18

tremendous work that was done by the Planning Department

19

and the tremendous resources that were committed to that

20

process.

21

You know, Woody Allen once said that he was

22

astounded that people wanted to know the universe when

23

it's hard enough to find your way around Chinatown.

24

Well, it's hard enough to understand the Planning

25

process, but, in following, what has happened with the
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10

23

1

efforts by the County, the Planning Department, the --

2

the GPAC, and has give us some clarity about the -- what

3

kind of a vision we want for the island. And I have

4

seen, in the few meetings that I went to, that every

5

stakeholder had a -- an opportunity to say something

6

about this process again and again and again. And the

7

GPAC was highly representative of a diverse interest of

8

this community. So that people who think that they did

9

not get a -- to contribute, I just wonder where they

10

were during that planning process, because I saw every

11

segment of the community there speaking up about what

12

their particular interests are.

13

I happen to have the pleasure of working with

14

a number of developers. And there's a -- a beginning

15

and a middle and an end to the planning process. And

16

the developers wanna know just where things stand. They

17

were told some years ago, I think it was with Bill 84,

18

that if they were patient enough and waited for the Maui

19

Island Plan that they would have -- they would be able

20

to move forward with their projects. Well, we're near

21

at the end of that particular project and now it's in

22

your -- the ball's in your court. And I'm here to ask

23

you to make some decisions about this thing, to dig in

24

to these plans and to review them and scrutinize them

25

and get them over with before the election is upon us
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and we're into another whole cycle with another Council.

2

So I'd like to ask this Council to deal with this Plan,

3

which has had so much input from the community, and to

4

act upon it without delay. Thank you.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Mark.

6

Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you. Dick

7

Mayer, followed by Bill Kamai.

8
9

MR. MAYER: Thank you, Council Members. And
thank you. I'm very pleased to see all nine Members of

10

the Council here, even those who are not serving on this

11

Committee. I think that's a tribute to how important

12

this issue is.

13

The comments I'm gonna make reflect some of

14

the earlier comments you already heard regarding the --

15

the effort, perhaps, to slow down the process. And so

16

I'm gonna read some text to you.

17
18
19

And could somebody hand this out? David?
(Inaudible).
The County Council set in motion a new process

20

to develop the County's General Plan when it adopted a

21

revision to Maui County Code 2.80, usually referred to

22

as Bill 84 and then, subsequent amendment, Bill 53.

23

Members of the general public, business and

24

developers, and community groups and associates --

25

associations bought into the idea of forming a type of
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contract, a sort of covenant, to work together to

2

develop the Maui Island Plan which would give substance

3

-- would give guidance to the County Government as well

4

as the general public for the next 20 years.

5

Literally, thousands of residents gave input

6

into this process and became participants in your

7

covenant. They are now anxiously awaiting the -- for

8

the Council to complete its obligation to review the

9

considerable input which has been provided by the

10

public, the deliberations and recommendations by the

11

GPAC, who -- who are selected by this Council, and the

12

Maui Planning Commission, whose members were approved by

13

this Council, reviewed by the professional planners in

14

our Planning Department, and assembled into the Maui

15

Island Plan which you have before you. Our community

16

wants closure to this process. And they want it to

17

happen sooner rather than later.

18

And here is a list of all the technical

19

reports which we reviewed as a member, and I as a member

20

of GPAC. And that does not even include several that

21

went through several revisions.

22

I believe -- turn to the next page. I believe

23

that the time is at hand for the Council to work

24

efficiently to complete your task, to affirm your

25

covenant with this community. According to the law, the
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1

County Council has up until the end of October to adopt

2

the Maui Island Plan. The Maui community trusts that

3

you will work diligently on this as your highest

4

priority. That may mean doing extra homework prior to

5

your meetings, holding additional meetings, and placing

6

the highest priority on the completion of this task,

7

even over the usual election year activities. This will

8

not be easy for you or your families; however, our

9

community will be very grateful when you have completed

10

your task and established a firm future for our island.

11

We look to you individually and collectively

12

to provide leadership that will be needed. You will be

13

called upon to work together, to cooperate, to

14

compromise, and to consider the alternate to not

15

completing this task prior to your October deadline.

16

The County has already spent several million

17

dollars on the development of this Maui Island Plan.

18

The County's professional staff in the Long Range

19

Planning Division has spent five years preparing this

20

document. Numerous citizens have volunteered their time

21

on GPAC and the Planning Commission to advise the

22

Council. Thousands of residents have given up their

23

time to give input to many hundreds of community

24

meetings.

25

And as the Plan states -- and here the -- the
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advantages of the plan, which you can read.

2

And I'm skipping now a paragraph. After the

3

Maui Island Plan is adopted, you will be able to quickly

4

initiate the work on the various Community Plans. The

5

Community Plans will be more easily developed once the

6

guidelines of the Maui Island Plan and the already

7

adopted Countywide Policy Plan have been established.

8

Furthermore, the Maui Island Plan will immediately

9

provide guidance to the Administration and all the

10

departments on the policy directions of this County.

11

These guidelines are overdue, and will be most helpful.

12

And, finally, I believe that the request by

13

the Council to have the community help develop this Maui

14

Island Plan has established a moral obligation on the

15

part of the Council, part of that covenant that I spoke

16

about, to complete this work and not to be distracted by

17

those who request a slowdown in the process.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

18
19

Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,

20

thank you.

21

MR. MAYER: Thank you.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Bill Kamai, followed by

23

Bruce Uu.

24

MR. KAMAI: Aloha and good afternoon, Chairman

25

Kaho'ohalahala, Council Members. My name is Bill Kamai.
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1

I am a service representative of the Hawaii Carpenters

2

Union.

3

I'd like to hand out this colored matrix.

4

It's the -- it a four-column housing matrix. It's

5

color-coded. For those of you who've seen it before,

6

right on; for those of you who haven't, it's kinda

7

interesting.

8
9

The yellow signifies new regulations that
needs to be adopted by this body to implement any of the

10

policies and actions that's highlighted in yellow. The

11

blue requires a new plan or program. The purple means

12

you gotta hire new staff. And the green is for new

13

government entity. Accompany -- accompanying that white

14

sheet that's with it is the Appendix C that talks about

15

how you have to implement these programs if adopted.

16

If you were to look at the second page in

17

yellow, it talks about revising the County's property

18

taxes rates to make them more progressive, increase tax

19

rates as house values increase. That's something that

20

needs to be adopted by this body, in case you didn't

21

know. If you did already, maikai; if you never, maikai.

22

But that's what I mean by adopting this entire Housing

23

Policy as it is, that you folks have to take some

24

actions yourselves.

25

In the appendix, the white copies, it shows
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the different lead agencies that are to take part in

2

these different actions. You folks, the Council, is

3

listed as a lead agency in adopting tax rates. The

4

Department of Housing and Human Concerns are to keep

5

a -- keep a list of the different affordable housing

6

percentages, a running list. The Department of Planning

7

is to expedite and streamline the permitting process.

8

I think this body should slow down, take a

9

step backwards, and have these people come up and

10

comment on these different policies and actions that

11

you're adopting -- or you're being asked to adopt. And

12

this is just for the Housing Policy alone, not to

13

mention Heritage, Land Use, Agriculture, and so on.

14

I think this body should consider moving the

15

deadline. I think it's important enough that you guys

16

should know the answers to these different policies and

17

actions directly from the different directors. Public

18

Works, Water, Parks, have them come up and comment on

19

these different line items.

20

Thank you.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

22

Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,

23

thank you, Bill. Bruce Uu, followed by Jacqueline

24

Haraguchi.

25

MR. UU: Good afternoon, Council. My name is
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Bruce Uu, Apprenticeship Coordinator for the Hawaii

2

Carpenters Union and, also, former Maui Planning

3

Commissioner. I'm gonna be brief.

4

While I was on the Planning Commission, the

5

one thing that helped me out in deciding anything that

6

was coming through the process was agency comments

7

prying -- prior to the project. So prior to voting on

8

something, we had recommendations from the agencies for

9

their particular, yes, they want it, no, they didn't

10

want it. That was normally the red flag. And my

11

question is, why isn't it done in this process? We not

12

-- we not having some of the agency comments. In fact,

13

we had testimony from certain directors that went

14

against some of the comments made on the General Plan,

15

albeit the Maui Island Plan. And at the same time,

16

while you ask them for their comments, potentially you

17

could ask for the costs of implementing certain

18

projects.

19

Somebody brought up mock presentations. I

20

brought that up when we was in Hana. The process looks

21

so long and cumbersome that I think doing a mock

22

presentation will be a benefit for the County.

23

And I've -- hear testimony of approving this

24

process or slowing down the process. My feel is if you

25

get the adequate recommendation from the certain
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agencies, you could, actually, potentially speed up the

2

process and everybody could be informed.

3

During the Planning Commission process, we

4

were faced with making decisions in a timeframe. You

5

need to finish it by this time. And -- and my feelings

6

was -- is there shouldn't be a timeframe if you're doing

7

something correct. I should -- especially when it lasts

8

for 20 years.

9

And I'm gonna end it with saying some of the

10

people who came to testify that were hindered by the

11

process, whether it being their property's in a regional

12

park or it's in sensitive areas, they asked for some

13

answers from the Long Range Planning staff. And I asked

14

the Director at the time -- who I respect, by the way --

15

"Could you give 'em an answer?" He said, "Now is not

16

the time, nor the place." At the end of the meeting,

17

when that testifier left, he -- one of the persons from

18

Long Range Planning said, "By law, we don't have to let

19

them know." And it bothers me because I see these

20

people in the grocery stores. I see the people at

21

Safeway. Eh, what about my property, you know.

22

Somehow, if you could notify the general public, you

23

know, the -- the people we interact when -- interact

24

with daily and give 'em one heads up what the potential

25

effect their property might have, I think it would be a
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good start for everyone.

2

And I agree that a lot of people have been

3

involved with the process, but it's been the same people

4

that's been -- been involved in the process.

5

And I thank you for your time.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

7

Members, any questions for the testifier?

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member

10
11

Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

12

Good afternoon, Mr. Uu. In your former capacity as a

13

Planning Commissioner, what you just stated concerns me

14

in terms of what a Planner told you. Was this as the

15

meeting was going on, or was this an off-the-cuff remark

16

in terms of, "We don't" -- the -- as -- the quote as you

17

used it, "We don't have to let these people know, by

18

law?" Because, you know what, there's all this talk of

19

transparency --

20

MR. UU: Uh-huh.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- how the process

22

needs to be transparent and so forth. Can you further

23

clarify that?

24
25

MR. UU: Okay. I -- yes, I can.

It was just

like -- set up like this. People give public testimony
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prior. So when I asked the Director to -- if he could

2

give comment on that individual's property, it was said,

3

"This is not the time or the place." And I guess we got

4

out of the meeting late, there was no one in the

5

gallery, and the comment was made by one of the Long

6

Range staff that, by law, they don't have to. And

7

that's not transparity [sic]. I -- I felt bad for the

8

person 'cause I said, "I'll bring it up." I said make

9

-- make my -- "I'll bring it up when the time is right."

10

'Cause I respected the comment. And when I did, that's

11

the answer I got.

12

And for me, it's -- if -- if that's the case,

13

you should've said it there. You should have said it

14

right to, you know, Mr. Maliko. He's from Maliko. You

15

should've tell him right then and there, if that's the

16

case, not say it behind the back. That's not how do --

17

we run. That's not the right way to do it.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
Thank you, Chair.

20

MR. UU: Thank you.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

22

Members, any other questions?

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I got one.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Member

25

Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. What

2

you just told me kinda bothers me because I -- I think

3

we all know that we had one testifier that came in here

4

indicating that his land was, I -- I guess being rezoned

5

to something that he couldn't do anything with. And,

6

basically, I -- I don't know how many more local type

7

had come to the Planning Commission, especially

8

Upcountry, where we see a lotta old-time local residents

9

that have big properties that may be affected in a sense

10

that they were thinking about subdividing, creating

11

family subdivision, all of a sudden, everything's poof,

12

gone. Did any longtime resident come out, talk to the

13

Planning Commission in regards to some of those kine

14

issues?

15

MR. UU: To answer that, yes. People have

16

come up and testified, saying their properties would be

17

affected, but most of the population has no idea.

18

And -- and that's the part that scares me. The people

19

are alerted by someone or the people are up-to-date with

20

the process. I don't know what the percentage of the

21

people in the Maui County's familiar with the process,

22

but it's gonna be after the fact. I think an example

23

would be Maalaea Store. I think it -- it -- something

24

-- the last General Plan affected them, if I not

25

mistaken. And we're gonna see a lotta -- a lotta those
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potentially come up.
And for myself, when -- for myself,

3

personally, when I ask for advice, I ask a professional.

4

And that's why I look for agency comments. And I would

5

hate to respond or take a motion or make a motion if I'm

6

not the expert. So that's my two cents.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.

8

And -- and one more question. In regards to your review

9

on the Planning Commission, any talk in regards how we

10
11

going pay for this thing?
MR. UU: We -- I guess from us, the taxpayers,

12

that's my answer. But we asked numerous times, we

13

asked. And, you know, granted, they was on a timeline,

14

too. So I -- I think that's part of the problem, when

15

-- when you get the Planning -- Planning Commission on a

16

deadline and you get the Long Range Planning Department

17

on a deadline, you're -- you're pretty much, you know,

18

shoving everything down at the last minute. So we got

19

nothing as far as budget or cost. A lot of times they

20

said that they were gonna get to it. But I know it's a

21

overwhelming process. It's a time-consuming process.

22

So I wouldn't expect them to get everything. But -- and

23

if it's gonna be implemented for 20 years, I think you

24

should take the time.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank
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you, Chairman.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any

3

other questions? Okay. Bruce, I just have a question

4

for you. You sat in the processes as a Planning

5

Commissioner, then -- do you think, then, that process

6

in terms of getting input from the general public, then,

7

was -- was not afforded in terms of you looking at

8

the -- the Maui Island Plan and then trying to make

9

decisions as -- as -- as we are, at the Council?

10

MR. UU: You know, I heard some of the

11

testimony saying a lot of people, again, was -- was

12

involved in the process, but, for my understanding, was

13

a lot of the same people. I mean, I guess it's -- it

14

works the same here. And you know local people -- and

15

that's the ones I concerned for, the local people --

16

who, you know, last minute they gonna wanna move forward

17

with a subdivision or project who -- who wasn't

18

notified. I think the church across from the street --

19

Paia -- the Paia Hongwanji Church across the street, ran

20

into that problem. And -- and that's what I'm afraid

21

of.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I guess just --

23

just generally across, as we -- we're moving plans like

24

this forward, then, at some point in time, we're going

25

to have to make a decision as to how to proceed. And if
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1

there's no participation that -- you know, we've been

2

criticized in our processes of the same thing, and, yet,

3

we afford everyone an opportunity to come. But when

4

people do not come, how -- how do you propose that --

5

that we should consider, you know, our decision-making

6

in terms of trying to meet some deadline, then?

7

MR. UU: Personally, if you get a print in The

8

Maui News and you color-code it like we have it, in

9

particular areas, regions in the County, I -- I -- you

10

know, the people who testified that's what got 'em, they

11

-- they saw that their land was now green and purple,

12

regional park and sensitive area. And that what's --

13

that what -- that is what sparked the interest to

14

testify. How do you get that to -- to them? You know,

15

I don't know if you do it by news, newspaper, you know.

16

Good question. It was -- it's easy to understand when

17

-- when you get a slash of purple and a green coming

18

down your property. And I think that would bring some

19

awareness. And how do you do it? You know, good

20

question.

21
22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very
much. Any other questions, Members? Okay.

23

MR. UU: Thank you.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Jacqueline Haraguchi,

25

followed by Chris Hart.
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MS. HARAGUCHI: Hello. My name is Jacqueline

2

Haraguchi. I represent the Maui Contractors

3

Association. And I am just here, really, to ask all of

4

you to slow the process down, especially in the Housing

5

side. I looked through the Housing side. There's a lot

6

of contradictions. There's a lot of things that seem

7

unachievable because of the money to -- that -- needed

8

for it.

9

One of the things that I highly recommend,

10

where you have developing incentives to promote projects

11

with -- to achieve L.E.E.D. Silver or Gold, know that

12

there are other green programs out there. So it does

13

not have to be L.E.E.D. It can be any HP green building

14

or it can be Hawaii BuiltGreen, which the cost of that

15

is not as high as L.E.E.D. So, realistically, pushing a

16

product of L.E.E.D. in something like this is costly.

17

It's very costly. And when it comes to affordable

18

housing, if the developer is gonna do L.E.E.D., it is

19

costly, you know.
So I am here to ask each and every one of you

20
21

to slow this process down. Slow it down for everybody.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

22
23

Questions, Members? Member Johnson, followed by Member

24

Baisa.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Jacque, I
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1

appreciate your being here. One of the things that

2

we've heard both from your industry and the construction

3

industry overall is that we need jobs.

4

MS. HARAGUCHI: Yes.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Part of what we're

6

doing --

7

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- is to actually

9

delineate very clearly what areas can be developed,

10

what's expanding. And, you know, all, basically, to

11

provide for the needs of the community over these many,

12

many months.

13

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Particularly as business

15

has slowed, construction has --

16

MS. HARAGUCHI: Yes.

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- slowed. Can you

18

explain to me, if we're trying to achieve jobs --

19

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- how slowing down the

21

process, which would result in greater opportunities --

22

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

23

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- for building and for

24
25

people that have been benched for a long time -MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- how -- how that really

helps your situation?
MS. HARAGUCHI: Well, I think having the

4

departments here that effect this, that are -- are gonna

5

be affected and that are responsible to handle part of

6

it need to be here. We need to know their input because

7

maybe they can't do it in there. And if they can't do

8

it, what's gonna happen? What is the Council gonna do?

9

I mean, the Council has responsibility. On -- on top of

10

that, what is the Council gonna do? How are they gonna

11

implement it? How are all these other departments gonna

12

implement it?

13

Right now, in the County, even though you're

14

saying you're trying to push jobs through, if people

15

don't know how they're gonna implement it or not have

16

the money to implement it, we still won't have jobs. So

17

what I ask for is for the slowdown for these departments

18

to come in and say how they're gonna implement it.

19
20
21

Do they even have the money? This is such a
bad time. We don't have money right now, you know.
We need to know, as an industry, as a

22

community, how things are gonna be implemented, or if

23

they even can. Because if they cannot, we will still

24

not be building anything.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And -- and I understand
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1

that. And I still -- I guess my question goes back to

2

how does bringing in, though, those departments, which

3

if we all come together --

4

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- to resolve the

6

directive that --

7

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- we've received, then,

9
10

from the community, much of the input which has been
given from your industry --

11

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- how does that really

13

preclude us providing these things if we all come

14

together? You understand what I'm saying?

15

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That these are

17

directives.

18

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's not my job to figure

20

it out.

21

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's our job to get the

23

taxes and get everything in place --

24

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right.

25

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- so that we can
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implement it. And if we all work together --

2

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- we can achieve that

4

more rapidly. That's my point.

5

MS. HARAGUCHI: Okay.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa?

8

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank -- (clears throat)

9

-- thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Haraguchi, for

10

being here. What I'm trying to wrestle with -- and I

11

welcome your input because I understand what you're

12

trying to say. You know, you know how we've been

13

handling this.

14

MS. HARAGUCHI: Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We get a matrix, we get

16

it ahead of time, we have the Plan. We sit down and we

17

go line by line and we discuss the various

18

recommendations from GPAC, from Planning Commission,

19

from the Director. And we try to say, okay, this is

20

okay, or, this is not okay.

21

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's kinda what

23

we've been doing.

24

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you help us with
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1

some idea of how this could better work so that people

2

would feel they're involved and that they understand?

3

It -- it's really, really a tough thing to do.
MS. HARAGUCHI: It is. I have -- I have the

4
5

whole Plan myself. I looked at it. I tried to read it.

6

And it's -- it's very tough. It is very tough to

7

understand, period, with everything that is in there.

8

Some things, personally, for me, make sense and some

9

things don't, you know. And that's how it's gonna be

10

for every single person. Every single person is gonna

11

look at it in a different light. But it's up to this

12

Council to get together with the departments that are

13

gonna be involved in making these decisions or

14

implementation to see if these -- if -- if it's even

15

feasible.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Are you thinking that
maybe, when we work on a section --

18

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- that, after we go

20

through it, we might want to let it sit for a while and

21

have your organization look at it, community

22

associations look at it, different kinds of people, come

23

back and give us feedback? Which, of course, lengthens

24

the process --

25

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right.
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10
1
2

44
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- but ensures that

there's more awareness.

3

MS. HARAGUCHI: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm just trying to, you

5

know, think of how do we do this --

6

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- so that people know.

8

And, really, it comes down to more discussion.
MS. HARAGUCHI: Right. You're exactly right.

9

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's really -- it's a

10
11

hard thing to do.

12

MS. HARAGUCHI: Uh-huh.

13

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I sat through

14

most of the GPAC process, and I saw the hours and hours

15

and the tons of paper that people went through, and all

16

the testimony. And even then, people still feel that

17

they don't know what's in the document --

18

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: -- or they don't

20

understand it.

21

MS. HARAGUCHI: Right. You're exactly right.

22

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Thank you

23

very much.

24

MS. HARAGUCHI: Okay.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other
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questions? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

2

MS. HARAGUCHI: Thank you.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chris Hart, followed by

4
5

Lucienne deNaie.
MR. HART: Mr. Chair, Members of the Council

6

Planning Committee, my name is Chris Hart. And I'm

7

testifying as an individual.

8

9

You know, I -- I -- I really love Maui. And I
look at the Island Plan as a vision document. It's a

10

vision for Maui as a rural community of small towns as

11

opposed to the kind of urbanization that's taken place

12

on Oahu over a period of time. And I -- I think that's

13

a -- a good comparison.

14

The Plan itself, basically, as a vision,

15

essentially encompasses a period of time of 20 years,

16

through the year 2030. And essentially, that -- over

17

that period of time, Maui's population is projected by

18

the Department of Business and Economic Development and

19

Tourism to grow by approximately 40,000 people.

20

Now, the growth is to be directed toward Urban

21

Growth Boundaries. In other words, to essentially be

22

infill, and to, basically, be part of the creation of

23

new -- new small towns or new country towns.

24
25

It's -- the actual implementation of the Plan
over the period of time is going to be through the
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1

process of updating the six Community Plans for Maui

2

Island. And issues that -- that are of concern, like,

3

for instance, the amount of money that it's going to

4

cost, for instance, in terms of infrastructure,

5

remember, it's a 20-year plan. And remember that the

6

Community Plans have a window of 10 years. So,

7

basically, there's going to be a -- an allocation of

8

capital improvements, you know, that's going to be,

9

basically, affordable. And the Council will participate

10
11

in that.
I think it's also important to realize that,

12

you know, the -- there have been many people involved in

13

this process. And, you know, essentially, when we look

14

at the population increasing from 136,000 to 176,000,

15

we're also looking at the visitor industry increasing

16

from 45,000 visitors per day to 58,000 visitors per day.

17

So it's not a no-growth plan. Also, we're looking at

18

the construction in terms of directed growth of

19

approximately 15,000 units.

20

So I -- I really believe that the Plan is a

21

good plan and it's, basically, something that you have

22

essentially a year to complete in the context of Bill

23

53 -- or Ordinance 53.

24
25

So with that, I encourage you to move forward
and to complete the Plan. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

1
2

Members, questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing

3

none, thank you. Lucienne deNaie, followed by Mike

4

Foley.

5

MS. deNAIE: Aloha, everyone. My name is

6

Lucienne deNaie. I'm testifying on my own behalf and, I

7

guess, as a person who spent three years on the General

8

Plan Advisory Committee.

9

Well, we're at the final stretch here. And I

10

-- I do commend this group for giving themselves the

11

deadline to try to accomplish something that's not easy.

12

I mean, we had to, you know, during our process, go

13

through lots of backs and forths and extend the deadline

14

a little bit a few times, but, in essence, our eye was

15

on the prize. And I think that this group needs to take

16

the same approach.

17

Now, correct me if I'm wrong when we get to

18

staff, but I believe that every single department in

19

this County has reviewed every single version of this

20

Plan. I believe they've reviewed it when it came

21

through GPAC and I believe they reviewed it after it had

22

been passed through by the Planning Commission. And I

23

believe that they reviewed the recommendations that the

24

Planning Department sent to you as their kind of, you

25

know, melded version. I may be wrong about that, but
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1

what -- we were told that every department had reviewed

2

it. We were given presentations by every department.

3

And I would be very, very, very surprised if what people

4

keep asking for has not actually already happened.

5

Of course, it's never a bad idea having folks

6

from the departments sit up so you can ask them

7

questions. I think that would be a wonderful idea. But

8

to say, gosh, you know, this has never happened, I'm not

9

sure if that's entirely accurate. So I would urge you

10

folks to check that out.

11

Also, the business about unfunded mandates or

12

having too much in the Plan that we can never afford, I

13

would just turn your attention -- each of you represent

14

a district that has a Community Plan. Your Community

15

Plans have many programs, ideas, studies, acquisitions

16

of land, et cetera, that were envisioned. They may not

17

have happened at this point, but if they hadn't even

18

been envisioned, they wouldn't even have a chance to

19

happen. And so some of them have happened and some have

20

not. And those are the force of law, too. Those aren't

21

suggestions. Those -- when a Community Plan is adopted,

22

it has the force of law.

23

I think you're going to see that, like Chris

24

said, you wanna look far enough in the future in these

25

plans that you don't shortchange yourself further on
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1

down and go, God, I wish we would have kind of thought

2

that this was important because now it is. Whereas, if

3

something's in the Plan and it turns out it's not

4

important, you can say, you know, we've really thought

5

this through and, as time has progressed, there isn't a

6

need for that, so we're going to ignore it. So I -- I'm

7

not sure if that's a deal breaker. There's a lot of

8

hard work that's gone into these things.

9

And, in fact, I have to say, in all due

10

respect to the hotel industry, some of the people on

11

GPAC that were really insisting on language being

12

strengthened were local people who grew up in local

13

communities. Some of them had even worked for the

14

plantation at one time or another. And this isn't just

15

coming from like thin air.
I think there needs to be a balance in our

16
17

visitor industry. And that's what our new economy is

18

about.

19

Please treat the Economic Section with

20

respect. Jeanne Skog sort of headed that subcommittee.

21

She gave many extra hours to this.

22

And the -- the economy was starting to crash

23

when we worked on this plan, so we were aware that we

24

had to keep that in mind. Our -- our staff had to work

25

volunteering some of their time, Planning staff, because
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1

their budget was slashed. We -- we're all aware of

2

where we were heading.

3
4
5
6
7

So please move forward in a timely manner and
do due diligence. And God bless you. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members,
questions? Okay. Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Lucienne, if -- and --

8

and correct me if I'm wrong, but I think, within the

9

comments that you made, one of the things I heard was

10

that as far as the cost of the implementation of these

11

components, what you, I guess, were saying, in a sense,

12

is that if you paint a broader brush with many avenues

13

for visions, that, over time, those things that we can

14

afford at least will move towards those things that may

15

have outlived their usefulness or might not be

16

practical, we're gonna kinda leave that aside and move

17

forward with those things that are, I guess, really

18

important to the community. Is that essentially right?

19

MS. deNAIE: That's only what I've observed is

20

-- is what happens. Because we have wonderful visions

21

in our Community Plan. In fact, our -- our General Plan

22

says, very clearly, we need to sort of segue from the

23

tourism-based economy into a new economy. This Plan

24

makes an attempt to take everything that has been

25

suggested in the past and -- and suggest a new economy.
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1

Will it happen? I sure hope so. And I sure hope

2

tourism is a part of it. But it's like we need to

3

envision a future that's different than the present.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.

5

MS. deNAIE: Yeah.

6

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much,

7
8
9
10

Lucienne.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any
other questions? Seeing none, thank you. Mike Foley.
MR. FOLEY: Mr. Chairman, Members of the

11

Planning Committee, my name's Mike Foley. I live in

12

Makawao. And I'm testifying as an individual. I think

13

all of you know I'm a former Maui County Planning

14

Director and I retired with 42 years of experience as a

15

land use planner.

16

I participated in the update of five general

17

plans before moving to Maui 12 years ago. And this

18

process that has been used for the last four or five

19

years on the Maui Plan Update is, by far, the most

20

extensive and the most oriented towards citizen

21

participation. I attended many, many meetings of Focus

22

Maui Nui, which involved hundreds and hundreds of

23

people. I've attended, with Ms. Baisa, many meetings of

24

the -- of the GPAC. I also attended meetings of the

25

Planning Commission. And all of these groups have -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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1

have done a great job of taking testimony and putting

2

together a plan that is -- is visionary.

3

As Chris Hart said, this is a 20-year plan.

4

It's not a five-year plan. It's not about the economy

5

that happens right now. It's about how the economy

6

should be molded with -- with Maui for the next 20

7

years.

8
9

So the -- hundreds of Maui citizens have
participated. And that does include the visitor

10

industry, as Lucienne said. GPAC was very broad --

11

broad based.

12

The Maui Island Plan creates an excellent

13

foundation for the future update of the -- of the

14

Community Plans.

15

And I would urge you to continue reviewing the

16

Maui Island Plan and adopt it in -- in October. We've

17

had four or five years of work. We don't need delay

18

past October.

19

Urban Growth Boundaries are an extremely

20

important part of the -- the Maui Island Plan. They're

21

not new. They are proven effective in other locations.

22

And there has been involvement from other

23

departments. I can guarantee that. In fact, your new

24

Planning Director, Kathleen Aoki, coordinated a lot of

25

the work with the other departments. The Housing,
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1

Police, Fire, Public Works have all been involved

2

periodically in the review and the -- and the

3

preparation of the -- of the Maui Island Plan.
This is a long-range plan for 20 years. And

4
5

once again, I would -- I would encourage you to -- to

6

proceed. And -- and I -- I thank you for your service.

7

I know this is a -- a difficult process. It may be

8

easier than the Budget, but it's a -- it's a difficult

9

process. And I -- I thank you all for your -- for your

10
11

service.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

12

Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing

13

none, thank you.

14

Mr. Foley was the last person signed up to

15

testify. So at this time, then, the Chair would extend

16

an invitation to anyone that's seated here in the

17

Chambers and would like to testify, if you would come

18

forward at this time. Okay. Again, just state your

19

name for the record and then, upon completion of your

20

testimony, then, if you would sign --

21

MS. BOWIE: Yes. Thank you. Thank you, Chair

22

and Council Members. Irene Bowie, Executive Director of

23

Maui Tomorrow Foundation.

24
25

I'd just like to echo some of the comments
from Mike Foley and -- and Dick Mayer, Lucienne and
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1

Mr. Hart. I would urge you to go forward with this, to

2

please not delay it any longer. I think our -- the

3

economy nationwide and worldwide has slowed things down

4

enough. And we certainly don't need to be doing things

5

on our own to slow it even -- even further. It's taken

6

us four years to come to this point.

7

And I would just like to say that the public

8

absolutely did have a voice in this process through

9

Focus Maui Nui, many, many types of meetings, GPAC, Maui

10

Planning Commission testimony. Maui Tomorrow had

11

community meetings prior to each Maui Planning

12

Commission meeting in the communities to familiarize the

13

public with the process. We put press releases in the

14

paper to let people know that this was happening. We

15

filmed these meetings. We filmed all the Planning

16

Commission meetings. These air on Akaku. So, I mean, I

17

think we've done a lot to try to bring this forward to

18

the public. And if there's people that feel that the

19

public hasn't been advised enough on this, then I would

20

urge them to also hold community meetings and do the

21

same thing.

22

Also, I would -- just would like to say that

23

as far as Urban Growth Boundaries being some kind of new

24

thing that hasn't been tested or vetted, these are part

25

of smart growth principles. They've been tested in
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1

communities throughout the country with many beneficial

2

results. Number one being that people are healthier in

3

communities that have these types of things in them.

4

So, you know, many reasons. And we would think that the

5

visitor industry would also join us in asking for these

6

things because, again, it makes a better product.

7

We need to go forward in transit corridors.

8

We need better management of our water resources, our

9

wastewater. Infill and revitalization makes much sense.

10

It creates jobs. Looking towards alternative energy

11

sources will help us with green jobs. We need to do

12

everything we can to promote sustainable agriculture.

13

So, again, I would just say please, please go

14

forward on this. You're doing a great job. We all

15

recognize that it's been tough all the way through, but

16

we need to keep going. And I thank you for your time.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

18

Members, any questions for the testifier? Okay. Member

19

Baisa? Hold on.

20

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And

21

thank you, Ms. Bowie, for being here. You know, I'm

22

trying to sort out what we're hearing this afternoon.

23

And it appears to me that there's some feeling that

24

we're not going forward. And, yet, in my mind, I'm

25

sitting here with exactly -- I closed the book at the
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10

56

1

end of, you know, March when we went into Budget, and I

2

opened it today, and I have my place marked where we

3

begin again. So I don't know what this concern is

4

about, you know, we're not going forward. 'Cause I came

5

here to sit down today with every intention of just

6

picking up where we left off. So I'm trying to -- to

7

figure that out.
And I did hear some testimony about slow down,

8
9

slow down, but does that mean that we're not going

10

forward, or does it mean that we go forward maybe with a

11

little bit more time, a little more attention, more

12

discussion? What are you -- what -- what are your

13

thoughts?

14

MS. BOWIE: Well, I mean, I -- I would say

15

definitely go forward, you know, as you need to, to have

16

departments and -- and ask questions, certainly do that.

17

But -- but the testimony that's come, telling you to

18

slow this process down, that somehow it s not a

19

tested -- you know, that we're going off into areas that

20

we don't know what we're doing, there are good models

21

for this. And we've been on the track. And GPAC put in

22

so much work, and the Maui Planning Commission and a

23

great Maui Planning Department, on this. And so much

24

money has been spent on this. Again, are we supposed to

25

just kind of forget all of that because some people
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10

57

1

aren't happy with some of -- some of the goals that are

2

looked at in this? I think the community has been

3

paying attention to this. And -- and what's in this

4

Plan represents a voice of the community.

5

So, you know, whatever we can do to make the

6

job easier for you, we absolutely support it. But, you

7

know, more than anything -- I sat here, I wasn't gonna

8

testify today, but I did wanna hear what was being said

9

because I -- I had heard that people were gonna ask to

10

discount this Maui Island Plan and -- and keep -- hold

11

it off, hold it off 'til after the elections are over.

12

You know, a -- this is a very political time right now.

13

And we just think that the public deserves to keep going

14

forward on this.

15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So -- so there's some
kind of unease that we would stop the review altogether?
MS. BOWIE: I -- I believe so. And -- and

18

especially with things like the Urban Growth Boundaries.

19

I think there are people that are unhappy with that, but

20

they're proven. They're good for us. We will be a

21

better community for it. It makes sense. And I'm

22

somebody, I live in Central Maui, and I'm here asking

23

you to do infill and revitalization. I'm happy to have

24

more of it come in here because it makes sense for

25

taxpayers, also, because we have the infrastructure,
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10

58

1

rather than people going out into these open rural

2

areas. Let's leave those for the -- you know, for the

3

benefit of generations to come, and do what makes sense,

4

and take a page from smart planning principles that are

5

being proven throughout the country, and in a lot of

6

other countries, also.

7

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, you know, what I'm

8

thinking about is when we were doing the GPAC process,

9

you know, we tried -- and everybody tried very hard to

10

stay on the schedule, but because of the requirements of

11

doing that and meeting times and limitations of staff

12

and vacations and all of the things that happened in

13

trying to push things along, several postponements were

14

necessary. And I'm not sure that we might not run into

15

the same thing as we, you know, slog ahead here.

16

MS. BOWIE: Uh-huh.

17

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Which may push this

18

beyond the -- the imposed deadline that we've given

19

ourselves. And I don't think that would be unusual.

20

But I just wanted to know what had brought all this

21

concern about the time today. Thank you.

22

MS. BOWIE: And I think it's more the intent,

23

going -- just going forward, even if delays have to

24

happen, that the intent is to complete this.

25

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very
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much.

2

MS. BOWIE: Thank you.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any other

4

questions, Members? Okay. Seeing none, thank you.

5

Okay, another testifier. Again, if you haven't signed

6

up and you would like to testify, please come forward.
MS. FILIMOEATU: Aloha. Yes, I haven't signed

7
8

up. And thank you, Chairman, and the rest of you super

9

eight sitting here in this Chamber.
My name is Kehau Filimoeatu. And I was born

10
11

and raised on Maui. I am a working mother of three

12

adult children. And except for visiting relatives

13

abroad, we all have lived here all our lives and we call

14

Maui home. I hope to scatter my ashes where the rest of

15

my kupuna lay, on the slopes of Haleakala. And, really,

16

Honuaula is my kulaiwi.
So for all of that, I asked and was granted

17
18

the opportunity by you all to serve on our General Plan

19

Advisory Committee, more lovingly known as GPAC. Your,

20

or our, advisory committee was made up of 25 Mauians

21

from all corners of Moku Maui. Many of us came with

22

agendas. Some were for the -- their employer, some were

23

for benefactors, some were for families and others were

24

just personal. I guess you would say mine was more

25

personal.
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When Act 84 came about, I saw it as a laid-out

1
2

process with a timeline, directions and facilitators.

3

And I thought -- I thought -- that perhaps by -- I was

4

gonna give up about a year and-a-half of my life to do

5

good for my people who had told me to please come and

6

carry this kuleana. And those people for -- were for

7

our generations past, and, more importantly, for the

8

generations, seven of them, for the future.
So my kuleana by serving on GPAC was very

9
10

clear to me, to malama. For others, theirs were more

11

hardcore obligations. And some viewed my kuleana as

12

biased, prejudiced, and even racist -- auwe! To me, a

13

rock is a rock no matter what color. So a body,

14

somebody, is somebody, no matter what color they are.

15

Right?

16

And though not all 25 of us were on the same

17

page in the same book, we all realized we were stuck in

18

the same room at the same time, and we all learned to

19

respect each other's issues. We all were nonpaid

20

volunteers, and most of us had other jobs that helped

21

pay for the gas and the food to get to these different

22

sessions. We stuck it out.

23

And, finally, after three-plus long, brutal

24

years, the documents you have in these huge books are

25

what emerged. Of course, it's gone through the
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1

different turns. So now you are the paid professionals

2

to get and to promote the Plan.

3

So you think it's too fast? Eh, three years

4

is a lot of time and a lot of testimony to hear. More

5

than just nine pairs of ears, we had 25 of 'em. Hey, I

6

thought that when you all created 84, you were very

7

astute in getting an array of delegates go -- to go do

8

the manao gathering.
So now you and I are at crunch time. I know

9
10

October is the deadline. If you have to amend that, you

11

have to amend that. But what a legacy it would be

12

because all of your constituencies are waiting and

13

watching that, come Halloween, we possibly will have a

14

new plan.

15

Thank you.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members,

17

any questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing none,

18

thank you. If you would, Kehau, fill out a form,

19

please. You can get it to the -- at the back table.

20

Okay. This will be the last opportunity for anyone here

21

seated who has not testified and would like to come

22

forward, please come forward now. Okay. Seeing none,

23

then, if there's no objections, Chair will be closing

24

public testimony.

25

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, Chair

2
3

would like to take a -- a 10-minute break before we

4

continue our deliberations. And before you -- before we

5

recess, then, I'm -- Chair's gonna hand out a memo with

6

a schedule. So on your recess, if you would take some

7

time to -- to take a look at this. And we will

8

reconvene at 3:15.

9

RECESS:

10

Okay.

Recess. ...(gavel)...

3:06 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:24 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:

11

...(gavel)... Okay.

12

The Chair would like to reconvene our Planning Committee

13

meeting.

14

ITEM NO. 2

15

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (C.C. No. 07-54)
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, just prior to

16

the -- the recess, I handed out a memo for -- for each

17

of you. And I would like to go over that memo so that

18

we'll have a chance to -- to discuss this.

19

So by correspondence dated October 16, 2009,

20

the Planning Director transmitted the elements of the

21

Draft Maui Island Plan pursuant to Chapter 2.80B, Maui

22

County Code, which provides that the Council shall enact

23

the Plan by ordinance no later than one year after the

24

receipt of the Draft Maui Island Plan, unless the

25

Council extends the time by resolution.
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The State statute on the computation of time

1
2

states that the time in which any act provided by law is

3

to be done is computed by excluding the first day and

4

including the last day, unless the last day is a Sunday

5

or a holiday, and then it is also excluded. Applying

6

these principles to the current situation, Committee

7

Staff has advised that the Council's current deadline

8

for the enactment of the Maui Island Plan is October 18,

9

2010.

10

So for the Committee's convenience, I have

11

prepared the attached timeline showing the work that

12

would be necessary to meet this deadline. So please

13

note that this timeline envisions progress at a pace

14

that exceeds the Committee's current rate of work. In

15

addition, the timeline envisions continual meetings

16

throughout the weeks of July -- I mean, June 21st and

17

July 19th.

18

After a dozen meetings on the Plan -- Maui

19

Island Plan and completing an initial review of the

20

Plan's first three chapters, the Committee is at a

21

crossroads. This body needs to decide whether to

22

proceed with this accelerated workload and attempt to

23

enact the Maui Island Plan this term or leave the

24

project to the next Council which could adopt the

25

resolution to establish a new deadline for enactment.
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Therefore, when we begin deliberations at

2

today's meeting, a motion to defer consideration of this

3

matter would be in order. As Committee Chair, I would

4

interpret approval of such a motion as expressing the

5

body's intention to concentrate on other matters for the

6

remainder of the term. Alternatively, if a motion is

7

not made, or approved, I would understand that the

8

Committee Members are committed to conducting lengthy

9

meetings to position the Council to enact the Maui

10
11

Island Plan by ordinance before October 18.
So attached, Members, is that calendar of

12

dates. And you will note that, looking at today's date,

13

which is at the bottom, and working backward, this is

14

essentially the timeframe and the timeline in which we

15

must continue our deliberations in order to meet our

16

mandate by law to pass the Maui Island Plan out by

17

October 18.

18

So at this time the Chair would open the floor

19

for your comments and questions. Okay. Go ahead,

20

Member Johnson.

21

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And -- and I am

22

fully committed to moving forward with this. I think

23

one of our stumbling blocks, of course, has been Budget,

24

you know, because we needed to address a very onerous

25

Budget this year. But the subject matter in my
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1

Committee, for example, it's Economic Development,

2

Agriculture, Recreation, all that -- all things that are

3

components of the General Plan and the Maui Island Plan.

4

And because I have deliberately not tried to create new

5

things in my Committee -- this is my last term -- it's

6

really important to me that I free up time in my

7

Committee to also make that time available for the

8

purpose of doing the work that is necessary to see that

9

these goals and objectives are met.

10

My personal feeling is that, as many of the

11

testifiers said today, there has been so many hours that

12

has gone into this. And out of respect for the many

13

people that have worked on this -- our Planning Staff

14

has changed, you know, again. And if we keep delaying

15

and deferring and -- and really don't take action on

16

this, I think, in many respects, it will delay the

17

economic recovery of our island. Because people won't

18

make plans, people won't do things that are really not

19

at -- at least giving them direction. And I believe it

20

is really important for us, Mr. Chair, to move forward.

21

And I wholeheartedly support this.

22

I do not have any plans to take vacations.

23

And I will make myself available if we need to have

24

meeting dates other than my meetings. But I would just

25

say I am ready to make that sacrifice for the good of
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1

the community, but, also, in respect for all the work

2

that's already been done.

3

So I don't wanna delay this. I don't think

4

delaying is really gonna help our economy or give

5

direction to our citizens as to where we're going. And

6

I particularly appreciate all the work that has gone

7

into this by the GPAC Members.

8
9

So I -- I'm -- I'm open. My Committee dates
will be made available to whatever extent I can. I

10

don't have that many pressing things, but, you know,

11

I'll -- I'll deal with -- with whatever I have to deal

12

with. But, to me, it's that important that I feel I, as

13

one Committee Chair, am willing to make that sacrifice.

14

Thank you.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you very much.

16
17

Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank -- thank

18

you, Mr. Chairman. I'll go ahead and say my piece. My

19

take will be a little bit different from Member

20

Johnson's. And I've tried to weigh the pros and cons

21

with all of this.

22
23
24
25

And thank you for reading into the record your
-- your intent, Mr. Chairman.
I obtained a copy of your Committee's master
agenda, Mr. Chair. You got a lot, a lot, of very
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1

important matters that need to be addressed. Some of

2

'em that were referred to Committee from last year and

3

have yet to be addressed at this point. And they're

4

very important. And you've got quite a -- you know,

5

quite a list of items.

6

I'll read it into the records. PC-1, the

7

Terraces at Manele. PC Item 15, Solar Energy Facilities

8

as Permitted Uses in Ag-Zoned District, referred

9

September 4th, 2009. Of course, we have PC-16,

10

Controlling Fowl in Residential Areas, one that has

11

been -- the public's been waiting to hear addressed.

12

PC-17, Deferral Agreements for Subdivision Improvements.

13

This does not include all of the status items, too, that

14

have been considered, but I'm just going over some of

15

the, I guess, items that have received a lot of

16

attention in the past. PC-19, Small Wind Energy

17

Systems. We all talk about the issue of renewable

18

energies and so forth. That's something of great

19

interest of late. PC-20, Maximum Wall Height in Ag

20

Districts. Item PC-22, Agricultural Impact Fees.

21

PC-23, Definitions of Terms Used in Comprehensive Zoning

22

Ordinance. PC-33, the Pali to Puamana Parkway Master

23

Plan. PC-40, Transient Vacation Rentals Legislation. I

24

think that has -- we've had some comments about that

25

particular matter. PC-43, Rural Zoning Districts item.
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1

PC-44, Amendment to Definition of Heights. PC-45,

2

Eliminating Stacking of Uses in Hotel and Light

3

Industrial Zoning Districts. PC-47, Traffic Impact

4

Fees. I know Member Johnson, that she's been very

5

passionate about that particular issue. And I think

6

Member Baisa as well. So -But the point I'm trying to make here,

7
8

Chairman, there's a lot of important things. And not to

9

demean the Island Plan as well, but this is important --

10

these items that I've just read off are important to a

11

lot of people. And people, members of the public, are

12

waiting for resolution with those items as well. And

13

we're looking at a clock of October of this year to try

14

and get this done. And we heard in testimony one former

15

GPAC Member saying it took them three years. And I've

16

been on this Council since 2001. And if there's

17

somebody to correct me, I believe there was at least two

18

requests from the Department to ask us to extend the

19

deadline. So the GPAC did a lot of work, a -- maybe --

20

you know, some people might say maybe too much, but

21

that's a good thing. But they've handed the ball off to

22

us now with a lot more than maybe we all anticipated

23

having, and a lot of unanticipated issues that have come

24

up.

25

So I think the responsible thing to do, let's
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1

extend the deadline. And it doesn't prohibit us from

2

still reviewing the Plan on top of these other issues

3

that I've brought up from time to time. So I'm in favor

4

of, you know, considering amending the deadline. We

5

have yet to even amend the deadline yet. And I think

6

we've -- we have been working on this Plan since -- I

7

don't know if I -- if -- I guess Staff could correct me,

8

I guess, since December, we've been only addressing this

9

Plan. Although we did address a couple of referrals to

10

the Planning Committee.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We did take up --

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- other items as well.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And that came to mind,

15

yeah. But there was no other lengthy discussion on any

16

other items except for the Island Plan. So my point

17

again being, Mr. Chairman, there's so much other things

18

that's important to this community, in your Committee,

19

Mr. Chairman. So I would ask that you consider, you

20

know, looking at maybe extending the deadline, in some

21

way, shape or form, because of the budgetary issues that

22

have been brought up.

23

And it's gonna cost a lot of money. If the

24

public's willing to spend the money, then so be it.

25

Then we need to get that input.
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1

We heard from people a lot in Waihee who said

2

they felt left out of the Plan. And I know -- even for

3

me it gets frustrating when you -- you reach a point

4

where you think you're ready to make a decision, then

5

somebody comes in and, you know, expresses their

6

concerns. It's frustrating, but it's part of the

7

process. It happened to us, I think, the other day on

8

the cell phone issue. But nonetheless, it's all about

9

the -- you know, getting the maximum amount of input.
And we've been seeing people come to us, small

10
11

property owners, you know, local people, who have had

12

concerns about the boundary issues, they've been left

13

out of the boundaries. So how do we correct this, or -And, realistically, we're not gonna have a --

14
15

when this Plan is finally done, it's not gonna appeal to

16

100 percent of our population. But, nonetheless, it's

17

a -- it's a document we have to put out in a long-term

18

plan.

19

So I think I've said enough for the time

20

being, Mr. Chairman. So my whole thing is we -- if at

21

all possible, we can address some of these other items,

22

which -- which I believe also carry a lot of importance.

23

And we heard it again, three years, and that was with 25

24

people. We got nine people, and we've been at it not

25

even a year, and with a lot of things that were given to
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us. A lot. So those are my thoughts, Mr. Chairman.
And, you know, I think we're all caught

3

between a rock and a hard place. It's -- I won't use

4

the swear word, but it's a darned if you do and darned

5

if you don't kinda thing at this point. So I'll leave

6

it at that, Mr. Chairman.

7

Thank you.

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

9
10

Member Baisa? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. You know, I

11

-- I don't wanna say this again, but I'm gonna have to.

12

When this term began, and I no longer chaired the

13

Planning Committee and went to Land Use, I made a

14

recommendation. And I made that recommendation because

15

I had spent so much time with the GPAC and was well

16

aware of the amount of debate and discussion and work

17

that is required to work on this Plan. My

18

recommendation was that we set aside dedicated days

19

every month in -- in addition to our Committee schedule

20

to work only on General Plan. Well, we didn't do that,

21

and now we're here and it's crunch time.

22

I also am concerned about the issues that have

23

not been dealt with. In particular, the transient

24

vacation rental issue, which is really important and,

25

you know, affects a lot of people's lives. That alone,
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1

with wall heights and traffic impact fees and, you know,

2

a whole bunch of things that Member Molina mentioned.

3

However, I would like to see us find a way to do both

4

things and to do a little bit of work on this Maui

5

Island Plan going ahead. Because I can't imagine we

6

wouldn't do anything with it for the next -- this is

7

May, we have -- I mean this is June. We have June, July

8

-- yeah, the months go by. June, July, August,

9

September, October, November. And December, we all

10

know, is not a very good month. So that's five months.

11

We could possibly do some of this. Although I think

12

doing all of it may not work.

13

I'm looking at the schedule that's attached.

14

And I don't think it's realistic. Looking at July 12th,

15

you know, if we finally begin talking about the Directed

16

Growth Plan, that, in itself, is gonna take us several

17

meetings because it's where we're gonna actually talk

18

about these issues that have come up over and over about

19

who's in and who's out in the growth areas. So I think

20

we should try to make a plan and give some time to the

21

General Plan, and, also, to proceed with some of the

22

issues that we have to take up. It's not an easy thing,

23

but nobody ever said this was gonna be easy.

24

Thank you.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

2

In -- in listening to Members Molina and Baisa, I -- I

3

have some sense of agreeing with them. When it takes a

4

body of 25 people to come -- produce a plan for us that

5

took three years, it's hard to imagine a group of nine

6

people trying to get this done by October, and giving

7

fair time to those that would like to come and speak to

8

the parts of the plans that concern them or affect them

9

and -- and their properties.

10

So, for me, not to reiterate what my

11

colleagues said, but to have some sense of agreement

12

with them, is that I -- I would prefer that we don't

13

have to stick to this very rigorous schedule that'll

14

affect, you know, our other things that we're doing in

15

our committees. And you -- also, Mr. Chairman, I mean,

16

you have a really full plate, as have been described by

17

Member Molina. So I -- I would like to see us not hold

18

ourselves to October 18 as the deadline, but to look at

19

being able to extend it further so that we can do a

20

really good deliberation on -- on this Maui Island Plan.

21

Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

23
24
25

Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I -- I guess I'd like
a response from you in regards to the other areas of
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1

concern on the agenda and how you hope to achieve those.

2

Then I -- maybe I can make a more qualified statement

3

into what your --

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well --

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- intentions are.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- at this point, I

7

would like you to respond to the schedule that's before

8

you. And you're -- you're free to -- to characterize it

9

in any manner you wish, but I would like to hear what

10

you are thinking about this schedule. If we were to

11

meet the -- the scheduled mandate to pass out the

12

general -- the Maui Island Plan, then this is what it's

13

going to take. So --

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman --

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- in all fairness,

17

you know, the areas that Mr. Molina had outlined

18

earlier, I think the fair question from me to you is

19

when do you hope to engage in those, after October 18th?

20

That is my concern.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think --

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so with that

23
24
25

answer, I can perhaps give you an answer.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Well, I would
like to hear everyone's comments first, Mr. Nishiki, and
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then I will respond accordingly. So -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I have nothing to say

2
3

until I hear from what you respond. And then I'll --

4

I'll probably give you input.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member

5
6

Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess my question

7
8

to you as Chair, is it an all or nothing thing? And I

9

-- in other words, if we do not commit to this, then you

10

feel like we're not gonna do anything more with the

11

Island Plan, is this -- am I reading right? Is this

12

like an ultimatum, either we do and commit or we quit?

13

I just would need to know because I read what you read

14

to us, and that's my interpretation. If I interpreting

15

it wrong, my apologies, but that's my question to you,

16

sir.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's -- it's -- it's --

17
18

it's -- is that all you have to say at this moment in

19

time?

20

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well --

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because I -- I would

22
23

like to allow others to have -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, that --

24

that's because my interpretation of what you've told us

25

is that. And you're well aware of, and you've made note
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1

of it, that there will be a couple of particular weeks

2

of schedule, the June 21st, for which I've already made

3

the commitment today, WWA, and other commitments that I

4

made months ago, you know, a couple months back, not

5

realizing that this would come about. And I feel like,

6

you know, I've been throughout the process with you,

7

sir, every place, any place, any time, I've made that

8

commitment. But I also made other commitments. And I

9

have my Committee, and there's other things. So I'm

10

feeling kinda pressured between a rock and a hard place.

11

I wanna see it done, but I wanna see it done right.

12

And so I just feel like at this point in

13

time -- that was why I asked you the question, sir, is

14

it an all or nothing thing. Is there places for -- you

15

know, can we still work on it? And if we don't get

16

close enough, can we extend or -- or we have to do it

17

and we have to do it this way? And that was my

18

question, sir.

19

And, I mean, if you're not prepared, you wanna

20

answer each individual, then you may go ahead. And then

21

I'll give you my answer afterwards, just like

22

Mr. Nishiki.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

24

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, sir.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. I know we
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1

have two Non-Voting Members, but I wanna extend that to

2

you as well. So if I can start with Member -- Member

3

Pontanilla.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

5

Chairman. You know, I heard Member Molina in regards to

6

the items in your Committee. And -- and I think there's

7

several of the items that have lawsuits implication to

8

the County of Maui that I think we should allow

9

ourselves to -- to come resolution to those things. And

10

-- and, you know, extending the date maybe is one

11

consideration, rather than stick to October 18, looking

12

at a slight extension to completing the Maui Island

13

Plan. But a concern for me is that I think you have two

14

or three items that does have implications to lawsuits.

15

So I leave it at that.

16
17
18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Chair Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you

19

very much. And like Mr. Pontanilla, I, too, am a

20

Non-Voting Member of this Committee. And I think it's,

21

I think, a little easier for me, therefore, to be able

22

to, I guess, express my own feelings regarding --

23

regarding the process. October 18th is the final

24

deadline date, but that's not the date that this

25

Committee must finish your work.
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That date is in July for

3

the essential practice of trying to come up with

4

conclusions. So when you look at that kinda date, you

5

look at the timetable that -- that the Chairman has

6

outlined for all of the Members to -- to follow in terms

7

of trying to come up with a -- a workable timetable for

8

the Committee, it -- it's -- it's -- I'm gonna use the

9

word very difficult, you know, because it's more than

10

difficult to meet that timetable. Because just recall

11

the amount and the length of discussion that occurred

12

just, you know, within the easier part of the Island

13

Plan. And that's what we just completed, the easier

14

part of the Plan. The more technical, the more

15

difficult parts are yet to come.

16

My worry is us taking a look at the date. And

17

the date -- or the deadline date of October 18th is why

18

we need to complete the product. My worry is the rush

19

could -- I don't wanna see a product that is not a

20

product of quality. And I fear that, with the rush, we

21

may end up with a product that not -- that may not be

22

one of quality.

23

And the timetable is -- is demanding. I don't

24

know if all of the Members, because of their additional

25

commitments and responsibilities, will be able to commit
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1

to a rigid calendar. I do know Ms. Johnson has offered

2

her Committee time to you for those dates that she will

3

make available. I -- I still don't know whether the

4

Members will be able to commit in -- in terms of you

5

being able to achieve auorum.

6

And then, of course, Mr. Chairman, you and I

7

have had a discussion earlier regarding the process

8

itself. My difficulty with it was Island Plan versus

9

Community Plan. And it's just been my contention that

10

the Community Plans should have been done first. I find

11

it a little difficult when the overarching Island Plan

12

provides limitations and restrictions to the

13

communities. After -- after this body in fact completes

14

the Island Plan, we're gonna tell the communities, tell

15

us what you want, tell us how you see your community

16

growing, tell us what the wishes of your community are,

17

as long as they comply with the overarching Island Plan.

18

That's conflict. So we had that minor discussion. And

19

that's been my -- my problem.

20

But those are my concerns in being able to

21

look at extending this out, so we can have, perhaps,

22

quality versus the need to just meet the deadline.

23

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Chair

25

appreciates everyone's comments on this, but I thought
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it was important that we all understand, if we were to

2

meet the -- our chartered mandate -- the Charter is what

3

sets out the timetables for this. And that's why, as

4

the Chair of the Planning Committee, it's not my

5

schedule that I'm more concerned with, it's that we have

6

an obligation to a mandatory requirement for the General

7

Plan that comes out of the Charter. And so this Chair

8

was trying to meet the mandate of the Charter.

9

Yes, there are other issues that are pending

10

before my Committee. And I've tried to make time to

11

disperse them in -- throughout the year. And my intent

12

is still to continue to do so. But some of the

13

realities is that if we're gonna meet the Charter

14

mandate, which sets the timetable, that we have one year

15

from the time that this document was brought to -- to

16

the Council, that that date is October 18. But as the

17

-- the Chair has also indicated, October 18 is the day

18

that we must enact or pass it out. It doesn't speak to

19

first and second reading. It doesn't speak to public

20

hearings that are also a part of the process. So -- so

21

we're really confined now just to a really, really

22

condensed schedule.

23

So -- so I -- I needed to bring to your

24

attention because if this body is not going to be

25

willing to support this kind of timeframe, then I would
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question whether or not, then, we want to continue to --

2

to move along in a process that we know we're not gonna

3

meet -- be meeting. We can surely move the -- you know,

4

the -- the date. You know, we're allowed to -- to

5

extend this. But as has also been commented, that when

6

we extend into November and December, there are concerns

7

about those months as well. So -- so I needed to get a

8

good gauge so that I can understand how to proceed with

9

this Committee work.

10

But I wanna make a distinction between

11

Committee items and what is mandated to us by Charter.

12

This is not an item that just comes to us by chance; it

13

is a requirement by our Charter that we do this. That's

14

why I've stuck to this timetable. That's why I've tried

15

to meet all of the -- the requirements of the Charter,

16

so that we could say, in fact, that this body took the

17

-- the amount of time that was afforded us to the

18

fullest and then tried to exercise every opportunity to

19

deliberate on a -- on a plan so that we could meet that

20

timetable. That has been my -- my -- my commitment to

21

this particular requirement for the General Plan. So --

22

so that's why I needed to get a sense of -- of every one

23

of you.

24
25

And so for those of you that are having
questions about my other items, you know, just make it
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clear that some of these items were deferred as well

2

from previous Councils. And so I took on the

3

responsibility of the Planning Chair, but, when I came

4

into the Council as Planning Chair, I was also given the

5

responsibility of the General Plan. And with the

6

timeframes of the General Plan, it made clear to me that

7

some of my priorities have to be -- or most of my

8

priorities should be given to the General Plan. And

9

that's not to say to ignore the other items before my

10

Committee. And -- and I appreciate Member Molina going

11

through the list of those things. And, yes, there's

12

some very important things, but this Chair was not gonna

13

shirk the responsibility of those items. But I need to

14

know exactly what is going to be our commitment to our

15

-- at least our chartered mandate. So -- okay. Member

16

Johnson?

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And -- and, you

18

know, I think, while we look at the delay and the length

19

of time that it's taken us to get where we are, if you

20

think back, about 50 percent of the time at every

21

meeting has been discussing about the process. And I --

22

anybody can raise that issue anytime they want. The

23

testifiers get up, you know, it's like a tug of war.

24

And it's unfortunate that, obviously, there are two

25

schools of thought about what should be taking place.
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We had challenges with Bill 84 from the

2

beginning, about interpretation and the legal

3

perspective. So, to me, that's what we get paid the big

4

dollars for doing. But if we don't even try, we are

5

beaten before we even begin.

6

I look at people that can't afford to pay

7

their grocery bill, they can't afford to pay their rent,

8

they're going into foreclosure. We have been so

9

concentrating on economic prosperity and what can we do

10

to make things better. Well, people, we've got the

11

document. We've got it right in front of us. Shouldn't

12

we be thinking about challenging ourselves and get as

13

much done as we possibly can so that we can return to

14

economic prosperity so that we can move forward?

15

I mean, we have a challenge. We've met other

16

challenges. We got through a horrific budget. And,

17

yes, people were really disgruntled. But if we spend 50

18

percent to 75 percent every time arguing about the

19

process, you know what, we're our own worst enemy. And

20

I'm sorry if that offends some people, but, you know

21

what, stop arguing about it and just do it.

22

You're the Chair of the Committee. You have

23

tried to give us leadership. You have tried desperately

24

to include, and, yet, it's not good enough for us.

25

Well, you know what, I answer to the people.
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And the people have contributed their time, their

2

effort, their energy, they've gone through this. And

3

they signed on for a lot longer period of time than they

4

ever projected.

5

But you know what? To just wimp out and say

6

you're not even gonna try, I mean, what is that about?

7

There's people that want jobs. If this can provide it,

8

why -- what is our problem?

9
10

We have to make sacrifices just like other
people, Mr. Chair.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, frankly, if somebody

13

goes ahead and make -- makes a motion, you know, I'm not

14

gonna support it. Because, first of all, we're not --

15

if we don't try -- if we don't try, then we're beaten

16

from day one.

17

So, me, Mr. Chair, I'm ready to go. I'm ready

18

to make whatever sacrifices I need to make, and do so

19

not only on a timely basis, but with thoughtful

20

consideration in doing the best quality job that I can.

21

Maybe it means I have to get a little bit less sleep,

22

but I'm willing to do that because it's important to my

23

community. It's not about me; it's about my community.

24

So thank you, Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Member
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1

Johnson. The Chair's intent is not to get the Committee

2

to be riled up to the point that we are -- are getting

3

upset at one another. That's not my intent. Okay.

4

would like you folks to understand some of the realities

5

of this schedule. And that's why I put that out for

6

you.

7

Some of the -- the concerns that were raised

8

are really concerns that may be amendments to Bill 84.

9

You know, if that -- and if that is the case, then we

10

are talking about other processes that need to also come

11

forward. And this Committee is not gonna be dealing

12

with any of that at this time because Bill 84, as it's

13

written and as it lays out a process, is in place. So

14

if there are changes that need to be made to that

15

process, then it is a -- a whole other process that

16

needs to be engaged and -- and deliberated and -- and

17

decided upon. So -- so, for right now --

18

Having said that, are there any other

19

comments, nice comments? 'Cause I don't want us to pit

20

ourselves against each other. It's not my intent to do

21

that. I just want us to understand some of these

22

schedules. So, Member Molina?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you,

24

Chair. Thank you for setting that tone.

25

didn't think this would become such an

'Cause I -- I
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1

emotionally-charged issue. We're just looking at, you

2

know --

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: -- two different

5

schools of thought. And I'm trying to understand what

6

are our parameters if the majority of this body wants to

7

go in a direction, say, to extend the deadline. And I'm

8

glad you brought up the issue with the Charter as well.

9

May I ask Corporation Counsel a question?

10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Corporation Counsel.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Hopper, with

12

regards to the Charter issue, saying we have one year,

13

does the Council face any -- just for the public to

14

understand, myself, to get a clear understanding, is the

15

Council prohibited from extending our -- the deadline

16

as -- well, although it doesn't say specifically October

17

18th, it just mentions that one year from the time the

18

Council receives it. Can the Council amend or create a

19

new deadline as to when this Plan gets done? Because I

20

-- you know, I'm just trying to get an understanding.

21

It explains one year in the Charter, but, you know,

22

we're the ultimate body, the body that has to make this

23

ultimate decision. Can you share some insight with us

24

on that?

25

MR. HOPPER: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Bill
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84, 2.80B, was amended to allow the Council to extend

2

its own deadline by -- by resolution. We did issue --

3

our office, I mean, issued a written legal opinion on

4

that issue. I -- I -- I haven't had a chance to fully

5

review that before this meeting. But this was when we

6

first extended the time, I believe, for the Countywide

7

Policy Plan review --

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.

9

MR. HOPPER: -- because that -- that -- that

10

involved similar issues to the Maui Island Plan, since

11

they're both considered part of the General Plan. I can

12

certainly forward you a copy of that opinion, but that

13

was given in the context of amending 2.80B to allow the

14

Council to extend that deadline by resolution. So the

15

Council does have the authority by County Code to extend

16

its deadline, you know, beyond that time period, but

17

you -- you would need to pass a resolution to extend

18

that deadline. That was done with the Countywide Policy

19

Plan.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see.

21

MR. HOPPER: So -- so there is a precedent for

22
23

that. That has happened.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. And this

24

just recently happened. I guess with so much on our

25

minds, Mr. Chairman, with the Budget and everything
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1

else, it's just so hard to take everything in all at

2

once. And, again, going back to my point about, you

3

know, look at the GPAC, they had three years. And on

4

top of that, we -- we have all these other issues we

5

gotta deal with. So it can get a little overwhelming.

6

And with -- with all of the things that were formulated

7

by the GPAC and implemented into this plan, there's a

8

lot. It's a tremendous amount of things to consider.

9

And, if anything, I praise the GPAC for coming

10

up with all this stuff. But at the same time, for nine

11

members to try and get something out -- as Chairman

12

Mateo had shared with us, you know, we wanna get

13

something out that's, you know, palatable for

14

everybody -- I think Mr. Victorino also echoed that

15

sentiment as well -- it -- it would take a lot of time.

16

And whether we can meet this October 18 deadline, I'm

17

not so sure.

18

And to be fair to the public, again, looking

19

at some of your other agenda items as well -- and -- and

20

I can certainly appreciate the position you're in, too,

21

because you're -- you're trying to do your -- your part

22

to comply with what's in the Charter.

23

So it's a -- it's quite a complex issue. And

24

I know for some folks, it might seem like, well, why

25

don't you guys just -- it seems so simple from the
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1

outside, but when you get in here and have to deal with

2

all of this, all of the issues brought to your

3

attention, it's not -- not quite that easy.

4

And, you know, one -- one more thing I wanted

5

to add. It's ironic we had a couple people here from

6

FACE to testify. I believe Mr. Franco has been

7

consulting -- had been consulting our office. And I

8

think maybe he might have talked to you as well about

9

one of the items in -- in Committee as well, as to when

10
11

that could be brought up for discussion as well.
So, anyway -- and I know we've heard it from

12

the TVR folks and people with other items. So, you

13

know -- and, yeah, it isn't -- these are items that are

14

not mandated by Charter to hear, but, nonetheless, it's

15

our community. We -- we -- we have to lend an ear to

16

our community. And some of these items were deferrals

17

from past Councils.

18

And so we just have so much on our plate,

19

Mr. Chairman, as you know. So that -- that's the reason

20

for my -- my statements that -- that I made earlier.

21

And I -- I don't think it's a matter of us

22

wimping out. I'm like Member Baisa. I mean, some

23

people may be under the impression here that we're just

24

gonna totally stop everything, what we're doing on this

25

Plan. Maybe there's a way we can still work on some
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components of the Plan by extending -- we can also look

2

at extending the deadline as well. So it's not like --

3

I -- I -- I wouldn't like to see the Committee totally

4

drop working on the Plan. There's still areas we can

5

work on the Plan, I think, and, also, consider, you

6

know, working on some of these other important items

7

that our community has asked us to address.

8
9

So I -- I thank you for your leadership,
Mr. Chairman. This has certainly been quite a -- a bear

10

to deal with. So, anyway, I'll leave it at that. And

11

thank you for keeping civility in -- in -- in the

12

Committee. We -- we need that. We need to all be cool

13

head about this. Thank you.

14
15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
Members, any other comments? Okay. Go ahead --

16

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Member Victorino.

18

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank -- thank you.

19

And -- and, Chair, I, too, would like to echo my

20

appreciation. You know, I agree, we spend much -- we

21

spend so much time with the process and so much time

22

with public testimony and so much time trying to figure

23

out the differences between what GPAC, what Planning

24

Commission, what the Plan -- what the Director was

25

recommending. I gotta admit, at times, it was very
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10

91

1

confusing, and it was overwhelming, almost as bad as the

2

Budget. Okay. And I being very factual. I think all

3

of us tried -- and at times, even you, Mr. Chair -- I

4

mean, we weren't sure which way was right, and we

5

figured it out and got it to where we needed to and

6

decided to bring back -- something back to GPAC. We did

7

all what we needed to do for just what we've done to

8

this point. And it took us time. And all the public

9

hearings for which you and I attended, every community,

10

Hana, Lanai, Molokai, wherever we went, right,

11

Mr. Chair, was for the public to give us their manao

12

in -- in what we were doing. And we appreciate that. I

13

think the public deserves that much.

14

And I agree that, somebody said earlier, one

15

of the other Members said -- and I'm not sure who --

16

that when we make changes or we -- we add or delete or

17

make substantial changes in certain sections, what --

18

what precludes us from giving the public some time to

19

come back and say, hey, wait a minute, or the GPAC

20

Members coming back and say, hey, wait a minute, that's

21

not what our intent was, you know.

22

And, again, we even have a change in the

23

leadership within the Planning Department, you know.

24

And that's another issue, you know.

25

So much goes on, Chair. And that question I
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asked for you was if we made a -- a -- a -- a -- a -- a

2

motion to extend the deadline, would that end

3

everything? You know, I don't wanna end it. I wanna

4

continue. I think we're on a good track right now. But

5

if the 18th is not realistic, if we come and -- and --

6

and, in September, we're not there, or -- or in -- in

7

August, then I don't wanna see us say, okay, that's it,

8

pau, we not going do anything more. That's not why

9

we're here, Chair.

10

You've worked so hard. All of us have worked

11

hard. I think it's time. We haven't -- I've made my

12

best effort, whenever you've asked, to be there.

13

Unfortunately, some of the dates you put here, I cannot

14

be. And you're well aware of it. It's not something I

15

made just today. I was already committed to this. I'm

16

committed to the community and all of my actions is for

17

that purpose. So I'll follow your leadership. I wanna

18

see this continue.

19
20
21

I also like to see some of these other issues
that need to have some attention be taken.
For my Water Committee, right now, you know,

22

you're on that Committee, how many times we brought

23

things forward, and it gets sent back. It is

24

frustrating, but I realize it's the process. The public

25

has a right to put their manao in and their concern.
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1

And I've listened. And we've done it over and over,

2

right, Mr. Chair?

3

So I'm saying I'll do whatever it takes to

4

make it as fair as possible. But if I have commitments,

5

I'm going to apologize up front to you and to the other

6

Committee Members, I cannot change that. I mean, it's

7

-- it's commitments. So -- but beyond that, if there's

8

-- if I'm available, Mr. Chair, as I have in the past,

9

and then continue to be in the future, I will do my best

10

to be there, to be a part of it and to work as hard as

11

possible to get this done. Whether it's the 18th or

12

anything there near after, I really, really would like

13

to see this eventually done. I agree, it needs to be

14

done, but done right. And what is right is all -- we've

15

seen the conflict between what the Director recommended

16

and what GPAC had recommended. Sometimes they were

17

vastly different. And we had to come to some consensus.

18

And, in fact, to the point of going right back to the

19

GPAC's original recommendation.

20

So I -- I believe the process is going. And

21

you've done a great job leading us there. Let us not

22

stop. I -- I -- I think this all or nothing, it --

23

it -- it -- it gets me. I'm disappointed. I -- I -- I

24

don't ever work that way. I've always compromised. And

25

here's a time I wanna

I wanna do as much as we can,
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1

continue. If we can finish this by the 18th, more power

2

to us. But if we can't, I'm not gonna say let's stop

3

now.

4

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.

6

Member Nishiki, did you wanna say anything? I saw your

7

hand, I think. If not, then the Chair would like to

8

move on.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I had a

10

question for maybe Planning Department or the

11

Corporation Counsel. Mr. Mateo brought up an area

12

probably of big concern that we're going to deal with.

13

And that has to do with the Directed Growth Plan. Help

14

me to understand. Once we identify -- and I was looking

15

at some of these maps here -- does that mean that we

16

give these areas where the growth is to be addressed --

17

is this going to give them comprehensive zoning

18

automatically once we adopt a map?

19

MS. AOKI: No, it wouldn't. At the Community

20

Plan level, that's when you would go in and focus down

21

within the Urban Growth areas and decide how you wanna

22

use that land. And you would designate it for Park or

23

Business or Residential.

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So now we've got -- we

25

adopt this and there is areas that, perhaps, a community
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1

has not dealt with, does that community then, when we go

2

to the Community Plans, have the ability to eliminate

3

that growth?

4

MS. AOKI: They could conceivably, at the

5

Community Plan level, make a change to the Maui Island

6

Plan when they're looking at it. So --

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Corporation Counsel,

8

does this give any landowner any kind of nexus to say

9

that once the Council gives this identification on this

10
11

map that he has some sort of developmental rights?
MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As the

12

Director said, this -- this would not give anyone a

13

zoning. It would give them -- the only things that --

14

that actually is required by the 2.80B is Urban and

15

Rural Growth Boundaries. The Plan has gone a bit beyond

16

that and has been more specific in certain areas, but

17

that, in and of itself, wouldn't entitle that person to

18

develop necessarily. If their zoning, for example,

19

would not allow for a particular development, then that

20

individual would not be able to undertake that

21

development without getting a change in zoning that

22

would allow that type of development. Similarly, the

23

Community Plan could possibly be a limiting factor if

24

the -- the landowner was in the SMA or needed a

25

subdivision, for example. So if someone would be placed
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1

within the Urban Growth Boundaries, but if their -- if

2

their zoning would be something that -- that wouldn't

3

allow their particular type of development, then they

4

would still need to get a change in zoning to that type

5

of development.

6

I think they would be able to make an

7

argument, an appropriate argument, that they're -- they

8

would be designated for development in the Long Range

9

Plan, so that would -- that could potentially be used as

10

a basis for arguing for the change in zoning. But until

11

that change in zoning is actually granted by the

12

Council, that would -- that zoning itself wouldn't --

13

wouldn't be in place and wouldn't allow immediately a

14

type of land use unless it's in the zoning that's

15

actually -- that that developer would actually have.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And -- and --

17

and, Planning Department, I think a couple Council

18

Members pointed out Waihee as a specific area that

19

growth had been planned and, yet, the community never

20

had a chance, during this whole process, to -- to hear

21

this development. So I'll be specific. In that area

22

that the Waihee community had complained, is that a fact

23

that -- whether it be the GPAC or the Planning

24

Department, that you never went and told them of a

25

possible land designation that was to have occurred?
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MS. AOKI: From my discussions with staff and

2

from what I can remember when I was involved in the

3

Urban Growth Boundaries when I was in Long Range, the

4

Department had initially proposed growth out in Waihee.

5

Then we took those boundaries to all -- we had a big

6

agency meeting where we invited all the agencies in to

7

look at our maps. And Waihee was one of 'em where every

8

single agency did not support growth. So we took it

9

out. When we took the maps for review to the GPAC and

10
11

Planning Commission, apparently, growth got added in.
And I -- I believe the intention was truly

12

just they thought that they were doing a good thing by

13

helping Waihee. I don't think it was anything

14

vindictive. But at Planning Commission, members from

15

the Waihee community came out and they were upset that

16

this growth had been put around their community. So

17

Dave Michaelson, who's not here today, went out. And he

18

told me he met with the Waihee community either two or

19

three times. And he went along with Councilmember

20

Victorino. And the version of the map now just contains

21

a hard edge around what exists. So there's no proposed

22

expansion of growth in Waihee. So from my

23

interpretation of that -- I could be mistaken -- but I

24

-- the way I understood it was that the Planning

25

Department went out to Waihee, talked to the members out
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there and made amendments to the map to reflect that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This was prior to the
map being adopted by GPAC?

4

MS. AOKI: No. This was after.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This was after?

6

MS. AOKI: After.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you for

8
9
10

that explanation.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Again, Mr. Chairman,

11

when I asked you about what you had intended to do on

12

some of the items that are laying in your Committee, it

13

had to do with understanding, perhaps, what can be

14

achieved and what cannot. And I have no idea. However,

15

this is my take on the October 16th deadline. And I

16

think that you've even explained it to us. Despite

17

that, you said, by ordinance, you have one year.

18

However, Corporation Counsel -- and I -- and I read

19

again, in your communication to us, by correspondence

20

dated October 16th, the Planning Director transmitted

21

the elements of the Draft Island Plan pursuant to

22

Chapter 2.80B, Maui County Code, which provides that the

23

Council shall enact the plan by ordinance no later than

24

one year after the receipt of the draft plan, unless the

25

Council extends the time by resolution, period. And
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then you've got one --

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Mr. --

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- in your footnotes

4

and then --

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- you go on --

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki --

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- to express it.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We've -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So I want to tell you

10
11

this now.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- we've gone through

12
13
14

that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. So -- so we can

15

extend it by law. My feeling is -- and I thank you for

16

allowing me to speak -- that I would hope to complete

17

this Plan before this term of office. So I don't know

18

what we have in November or the first couple of weeks of

19

December, but that would be my intention. If there is

20

any kind of date to extend, then my feeling is that I'd

21

like to do it before this term is up. But to stick to

22

this timeline, I -- I need to ask Corporation Counsel

23

this question, at what point in time -- should the

24

Council see that we're not able to meet the October 16th

25

deadline, when can the Council so initiate an extension?
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1

Does it have to be today? Because that's what I need to

2

know.

3
4
5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Corporation
Counsel, go ahead.
MR. HOPPER: Well, an extension can be granted

6

at -- at any point. It could be -- it -- it's by

7

resolution. So you would need to follow the Council

8

process for enacting a resolution. And it's -- there

9

has been a time extension in the case of the Countywide

10

Policy Plan under this same ordinance done after the

11

deadline's passed, actually. So it is possible to do

12

that. So -- so there's not a -- there's not a

13

requirement that -- that you would have to pass the

14

resolution today. You would need to pass a resolution

15

at -- at some point in time to allow for that extension.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. And then,

18
19

Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank -- (clears throat)

20

-- thank you very much, Chair. Just a few more

21

comments. First of all, I think we ought to slog away

22

at trying to meet this deadline. However, looking at

23

this timetable, I think it probably needs a little bit

24

of work because I think it's just a little too tight.

25

Looking at like today, we already blew today, so there's
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, we still got some
time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't think we can

5

complete Economic Development and Housing today. Then

6

we have other areas that I think are pretty difficult

7

and are gonna take a lot of time. And those are things

8

like the Directed Growth Plan. That's not gonna be gone

9

through in a meeting. There's just no way. So I would

10

say we might want to just slog ahead and see where we

11

are in a few months. And if we have to extend the

12

deadline then, we do it.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very

14

much. Okay. Members, then, on -- on that note, then,

15

what the Chair would like to do is thank you all for

16

your comments. This timetable was really put together

17

just based on our current Charter mandate. So you have

18

a good idea of what remains in time based on this time

19

schedule given to us by the Planning Department in terms

20

of submittal of the Plan, that this is what we should

21

try to achieve. Yes, I also indicated that you can

22

extend, but just know, when you look at what's left to

23

extend, there's not that much time to extend as well.

24

So it means that this is a -- as realistic a plan as --

25

as we have before us. So I would hope that you would
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1

take this plan to heart and then try to move it out and

2

deliberate and make decisions as -- as efficiently and

3

as -- as -- as best as we can.

4

So, with that, I know that we're gonna have a

5

quorum issue. We've already lost one -- one member.

6

And I -- Member Baisa is gonna be leaving. But we have

7

15 minutes. Can we proceed and move ahead, then?

8

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then,

10

Department, are we gonna continue to move ahead on -- on

11

this process? And I thank everyone for their -- their

12

comments. So we'll get --

13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: What page?

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Staff to put the --

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: What page?

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the document up on

17

the -- the board for us. Okay. Member, you should have

18

received --

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Deidre's here. She may
be (inaudible).
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- the matrix that was

22

dated May 26th. And if you would take that matrix and

23

you turn to Page Number 17, we will begin with Item

24

Number 411. Okay. And so at this point in time, then,

25

what the Chair would like to do is -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10

103

1

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: What we been doing.

2

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm trying to get the

3

exact page on the document here.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's 410.

5

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, in your

6

-- your binders, we are beginning on Page 4-24, and this

7

is Small Business Development. And so the first item on

8

the table is to accept the text of the section that's

9

titled Small Business Development, on Page 4-24 to

10

halfway down Page 4-26.

11
12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward
with that motion.

13
14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I have a
second?

15

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

17

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa, to accept the -- the

18

Narrative Section on Page 4-24 to 4-2 -- 2-6.

19

Discussion on the motion?

20

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.

21

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If there's no

22

discussion, then, Members, all those in favor, signify

23

by saying "aye".

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".
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(Silence.)

VOTE:

3

AYES: Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Molina, and Nishiki.

4

NOES: None.

5

ABSTAIN: None.

6

ABSENT: None.

7
8
9
10

EXC.: Councilmembers Medeiros and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The Narrative

11

Section is adopted. Okay. We are now on the -- the

12

matrix item. And that would be beginning at Matrix Item

13

4-411 -- 411, on the board and in your matrix document.

14

So the Chair would entertain a motion to accept the Goal

15

and Objective 1 and the attached Policies.

16

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I move forward

17

that we accept the goal in -- on 411, Reference 4.5,

18

with the Objectives and Policies following.

19
20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a
second on that?

21

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved and -- by

23

Member Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa, to accept the

24

Goal on Item Number 411, the attached Objective Number

25

1, and the Policies which end on 4-31 -- I mean, 431.
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1

I'm sorry. Okay. Discussion? Go ahead, Member

2

Johnson.

3

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And just to be

4

clear, are we taking -- we're working off the Director's

5

recommendation as opposed to the --

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct. The other --

7

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- MPC --

8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- columns are to --

9

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- and GPAC?

10
11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- just give you back
-- back -- backup information.

12
13

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So if anyone has
any desire to return to the GPAC recommendation --

14

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.

15

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- they should make the

16

amend --

17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- amended motion? Thank

19
20
21

you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, at this
time the -- are there any amendments to this section?

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Seeing none,

24

then all those in favor of adopting the Matrix Items 411

25

with the Objectives and the Policies up to 4 dash -- I'm
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sorry. I keep saying dash. I mean four hundred --

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Four point --

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- and thirty one --

4

signify by saying "aye".

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

6

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

7

(Silence.)

8

VOTE:

9

AYES: Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Molina, and Nishiki.

10

NOES: None.

11

ABSTAIN: None.

12

ABSENT: None.

13
14

EXC.: Councilmembers Medeiros and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then the section

16
17

for the Small Business Development is adopted with the

18

Narrative and the matrix items.

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, Mr. Chair, did that

20

also include -- I know we just went to 431, but did that

21

include the two new recommended ones?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The two new ones

22
23

are --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: On Page 19.

25
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1

they're open for discussion at this point in time.

2

Okay. And then we will re -- re-number them as we go

3

through.

4

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Then, Mr. Chair, I

5

move to amend to add in the two new items suggested by

6

the Planning Director. And does that continue on, on

7

Page 20 as well, under the text? I guess that's Health

8

Care. No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.

9
10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So that begins --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: That would be a --

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: -- a new section.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- new sector, yeah.

14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. I move to amend.

15

And -- and, basically, that has to do with adopting

16

uniform building codes, and, also, to work with small

17

businesses and direct them to organizations that provide

18

loans.

19

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.

20

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

21

Johnson, seconded by Member Baisa, to adopt the two new

22

recommended implementation item numbers or policy

23

numbers. Discussion on the motion? Go ahead --

24

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just I --

25

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- Member Johnson.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think it -- I -- this

2

is very good to add this in because I think, like MEO

3

Microenterprise, and, also, MEDB, we need to work -- we

4

can't accomplish everything ourselves, so I think this

5

is really good to add this in. It supports, basically,

6

where we're putting our money, anyway. Thank you.

7

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further

8

discussion, Members? Okay. Seeing none, then all those

9

in favor, signify by saying "aye".

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

12

(Silence.)

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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2

AYES: Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Molina, and Nishiki.

3

NOES: None.

4

ABSTAIN: None.

5

ABSENT: None.

1

6
7
8
9

VOTE:

EXC.: Councilmembers Medeiros and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Motion carries.

10

So we are now completed with this Small Business

11

Development Section.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I got some.

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki?

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Under Number 424, I

17

move to keep the GPAC recommendation.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second for discussion.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

20

Nishiki, seconded by Member Molina, to amend by adding

21

the language from GPAC on Item 424.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And it says, develop

23

and market an online directory of small business and

24

their products, services. When I look at the Director's

25

Report, under 417 -Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

2

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Doesn't have that.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- this is not

4

addressed there.

5

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It just says, reduce

7

areas to small business development. That is my reason

8

for keeping this.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further

10

discussion on the amendment? Okay. Seeing none, then

11

all those in favor of the amendment to --

12

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I understand.

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- adopt the GPAC

14

language in Item 424, signify by saying "aye".

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

16

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".

17

(Silence.)
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VOTE:
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2

AYES: Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Molina, and Nishiki.

3

NOES: None.

4

ABSTAIN: None.

5

ABSENT: None.

6
7
8
9
10

EXC.: Councilmembers Medeiros and Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That item is now
amended into.

11

Okay. Any other items?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Mr. Chairman?

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Under 426, we are

15

adopting the Director's language which says, provide

16

business assistance, workshops and marketing programs to

17

small businesses to establish and enhance their

18

viability --

19

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- and taking out GPAC

21

which talks about grants, right?

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're looking at 426?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. GPAC is talking

25

about assistance programs, loans and grants.
Certified Shorthand Reporters Maui
(808)244-3376

PC 06/07/10
1

112

Department, your comments on -- on that?

2

MS. BOSCO: May I?

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: On Item 426?

4

MS. BOSCO: Thank you, Chair. Yes. We are

5

responding to comments that were offered by the Office

6

of -- of Economic Development. The footnote for Item

7

426 refers to those comments and the change being

8

initiated because of their comments. And, specifically,

9

the deletion of 425 was made because we, as the County,

10

cannot offer loans directly. We're -- we're not a

11

micro-lending establishment. So the language was

12

amended to reflect that. Does that help?

13

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki?

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And 426 --

15

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- Economic

17

Development says that loans are not something that they

18

do?
MS. BOSCO: Right. This is something that --

19
20

right. Correct.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. No objections.

22

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I have another one.

24
25

430.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Go ahead, Member
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Nishiki.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'd like to insert the

3

words, develop and enhance programs that help

4

locally-operated small businesses to market and provide

5

goods and services to "visitors and" the visitor

6

industry.

7
8

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki,
are you looking at 429?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 430.

9
10

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, 430. And you

11

want to amend that to reflect that language that you

12

just gave us? Because it's being reflected in 429.

13
14

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: 429. Yeah, it's already
there.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's all -- it's

15
16

already --

17

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: It's already there.

18

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: -- adopted with that

19
20

language in 429.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. I wanted to add

21

services, and to add the word "to visitors" and the

22

visitor industry.

23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki,

24

429, under the Director's column, are you reading that?

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I stand
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1

corrected. Yeah. Under 429, they talk about the

2

visitor industry. And I wanted to add on, "visitors

3

and" to the visitor industry.

4

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Can you go over

5

that language right there in 429 and tell us where you

6

want to amend?

7
8
9
10

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Visitors and the visitor
industry.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Develop and enhance
programs --

11

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- that help

13

locally-operated small businesses to market and provide

14

goods and services to, and add the word "visitors and"

15

the visitor industry.

16
17

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do I hear a
second on that?

18

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Second for discussion.

19

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member

20

Nishiki to amend Item Number 429 to include the words

21

"and visitors," is that what --

22

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: "Visitors and."

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, "visitors and."

25

So, discussion? Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Just the fact

1
2

that the visitor industry just seems real general. And

3

when we say visitors, then we're real specific about who

4

we're talking about.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Further

5
6

discussion? Seeing none, then all those in favor of the

7

amendment, signify by saying "aye".

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

9

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, "no".
(Silence.)

10

12

AYES: Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Councilmembers
Molina and Nishiki.

13

NOES: None.

14

ABSTAIN: None.

15

ABSENT: None.

11

16
17
18

VOTE:

EXC.: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros and
Victorino.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED.

19
20
21
22
23

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. The amendment is
adopted. Okay. Any more items for consideration?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How far does this
edition end? Does it --

24

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right there.

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- end under new?
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1

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

3

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If -- if nothing

4

else, then we have at least taken an opportunity today

5

to deal with the Small Business Development narratives

6

and the matrices. At this time, the Chair would like to

7

thank everyone for being here today. And -- and I'm

8

gonna move to adjourn our meeting. So, Members, I

9

appreciate all of your -- your input today. And I would

10

like to continue to -- to move forward on this as

11

expedient as we can. And that in -- in the process,

12

I'm -- I'm happy that at least we've had this chance to

13

-- to bring this discussion to the -- the forefront so

14

we all understand our responsibility and our commitment

15

to -- to moving the Maui Island Plan forward as -- as --

16

as much as possible. So thank you for that. Thank the

17

Department for being here, Corporation Counsel, our

18

Staff. This meeting for Planning Committee is

19

adjourned. ...(gavel)...

20

ADJOURN: 4:32 p.m.
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1
2
3
4
5

I, TONYA MCDADE, do hereby certify that the

6

electronically-recorded proceedings contained herein

7

were, after the fact, taken by me in machine shorthand

8

and thereafter was reduced to print by means of

9

computer-aided transcription; proofread under my

10

supervision; and that the foregoing represents, to the

11

best of my ability, a true and accurate transcript of

12

the provided electronically-recorded proceedings had in

13

the foregoing matter.

14

I further certify that I am not an employee

15

nor an attorney for any of the parties hereto, or

16

otherwise any way concerned with the cause.

17
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